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ITEM NO. 36:

GENERAL PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE (C.C. 05-220)

CHAIR TAVARES: ... (gavel) ... Will the Planning Committee please convene. Thank you
for coming out to join us and share your thoughts and feelings with us. Let me first
introduce the Members of the Committee who are here tonight. We have this evening our
Vice-Chair Danny Mateo, Councilmember Anderson, Councilmember Kane,
Councilmember Molina, Councilmember Pontanilla and our Council Chair Riki Hokama.
Excused are Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson. I'd like to also recognize our staff,
our Legislative and Legal Analyst, David Raatz; and our Committee Secretary, Jo-Ann
Sato. From the Planning Department, Director Foley, and from the Long-Range Planning
Division, Mr. John Summers .
. . . (inaudible) ... We're having some audio problems, so I'd like to take a short recess.

RECESS:

6:10 p.m.

RECONVENE:

6:20 p.m.

CHAIR TAV ARES: Committee please convene, reconvene. Thank you for the little break and I
think we have our audio straightened out here. So, once more, JoAnn. I noticed you sit
closer this time.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
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MS. AHUNA: Hi.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, JoAnn.
MS. AHUNA: I wanted to come by today to first thank all of the applicants for just even coming
out to apply for this committee. But I more especially wanted to support John BlumerBuell, Lesley Bruce and Lisa Hamilton for representing the Hana Community Plan area.
And in working with these people in the past 15 years, they're able to do their homework
for one. They do their resources, they check out things and when they make decisions
it's based on a greater community and not just segments of the community, and for that
purpose I think they're going to work out really well and it's going to benefit not only
Hana but the whole County of Maui. But I also wanted to say that in my experience in
working with different committees and boards and relating to the community plans as
resources that somehow in the plan that enforcement gets heard because we can make the
greatest plan but without enforcement we're going to be lost, and we're going to have all
kinds of things happening without enforcement. And it was ... four more names I'm not
sure if I could support four other people from different communities or not.
CHAIR TAVARES: Uh-huh. You may.
MS. AHUNA: Okay. I also wanted to support Elizabeth Russell from the Makawao community,
and Jim Niess and Hans Riecke from the Paia community, and Natalie Kama from the
Wailuku community. I just believe that everyone who has the desire to come out and
volunteer in these communities is a blessing for Maui County. So, I actually support
everybody who can get in. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Well, thank you for your discriminating taste. Any questions for JoAnn,
since she's running away so fast?
.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, at this time, thank you, Members, for being patient and also the
Planning Department. Mike, is that you or John that will give the introductory remarks
this evening?
MR. FOLEY: Thank you. I just wanted to, first of all, thank everybody for applying to serve on
the General Plan Advisory Committee. We really do appreciate your interest and
involvement. The process for updating the General Plan is spelled out in Bill 84, which
was adopted by the Council a little over a year ago, and my Department has been
working for the last ten months on accumulating and analyzing a great variety of data that
will be disseminated to the General Plan Advisory Committee.
As the Chairperson mentioned that the process is for the Council to appoint 19 members
for the Maui Island GP AC and also members to the Lanai and Molokai GP ACs on
October 31 st and then next month, the Mayor will add some additional members to those
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three General Plan Advisory Committees. Then we will spend couple months January
and February with some orientation sessions so that we can disseminate a lot of
information to the General Plan Advisory Committees regarding Maui Island and
regarding Bill 84, and basically what a General Plan is suppose to do. And then the
General Plan Advisory Committee for Maui Island will meet for eight months, probably
evening meetings and review a draft plan that the Department will put together for you.
And at the end of that eight month period, the Advisory Committee will submit
recommendations to the Maui Planning Commission, and then the Planning Commission
will submit to the Council. There are deadlines for all of these processes. The Advisory
Committees' deadline is eight months. The Planning Commission, I think, is eight
months. The Council's is a year. So we have a set schedule that takes us over the next
two years to the update of the General Plan.
I do want to mention that we anticipate there will be four documents that will make up
the 2030 General Plan. One will be a policy document that will cover all four islands Lanai, Molokai, Maui and Kahoolawe. And then there will be a Lanai Island Plan, a
Molokai Island Plan, and a Maui Island Plan. So it's quite a long, intensive, exciting
process and we look forward to your involvement and thank you again very much for
applying.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, thank you, Mr. Foley. At this time, we'd like to call the Hana
applicants who are here, and we will just go in alphabetical order. And the first person
we'll call is John Blumer-Buell but I believe he is unable to attend this evening. Okay.
So next will be, Lesley Bruce, and will be followed by Lisa Hamilton.
MS. BRUCE: My name is Lesley Ann Bruce and I am a resident of Hana and I would, to save
time, be happy to answer any of your questions.
CHAIR TAVARES: We don't have to save time. We want to hear from you. Tell us a little bit
about what your vision might be for the Maui ... Maui County General Plan.
MS. BRUCE: The Maui County General Plan is something I value very highly. I was involved
going to CAC meetings at the community plan level last round. I went to Kula, Haiku,
Hana and Kihei to those different groups, so I'm familiar with that activity. I didn't go to
the General Plan meetings but I'm interested in the General Plan level here as ... to have
the guidelines for the community plans. And my vision for Maui relates to the fact that I
was born here in Waikapu. My family lived since 1933 at the top ofWaiko Road. The
house is still there. I moved in 1994 to Hana and I lived in the Ranch Subdivision, and
now live in Samson
place on Hana Bay, and I spend time also on this side of
the island because I take care of my mother who is 100 years old has lived on Maui since
1928. I talk to her a lot about what she first remembers about coming to Hana, and she
said, I mean to Maui. She came on the little boat that lets you off in the middle of the
night at Lahaina, she was a teacher at Lahainaluna High School and she said, from the
time she got here, she was very aware that there was going to be very rapid change
because she was aware of the plantations were pretty much folding even then in terms of
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their growth was going down rather than expanding. And she realized that the land was
going to change.
As we take her around the island now, and she loves to go and walk around, she still
walks, she's always saying, can you picture this all covered with houses? And I said, that
sounds like Oahu to me. And I can't picture it all covered with houses because I value
the retention ofthe agricultural jobs and I value very highly the native landscape and I'm
very concerned when Art Medeiros shares with us that we're going to lose 100 percent of
the Hawaiian forest and have it replaced by ginger, Christmas berry and strawberry
guava. So, I'm concerned about things like invasive species and use of land for the
preservation ofland. I'm also concerned about the preservation of culture.
I spent ten years at the University of Hawaii studying archaeology. I'm familiar with
some of the archaeology on Maui. I was a member of the team that did the survey of, the
initial survey of historic places for the National and State Registry. So I'm familiar with
some of those places that we looked for in 1970 and 320 heiau that had been registered in
1930 by Winslow Walker. We managed to find 180 of them in one years time working
with Willie Keahi, Charles Keau, and Timothy Freitas and myself. So, that's some of my
background. Now, I answer questions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Members. Any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aloha, Lesley.
MS. BRUCE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for volunteering for this. I know that you also
worked with Maui County Historian Emeritus Inez Ashdown when she worked for the
County, and were very helpful in registering some sites at Palauea. I'd like to know from
you, because of your background, do you think . . . what do you think, do you think
there's more that we can do or ... I don't want to put you in a comer with my question,
so I'll rephrase it. Do you feel that there's more that we can do to preserve and protect
our ancient Hawaiian sites?
MS. BRUCE: Europeans came in the 18th Century. There were 1,700 years of Hawaiian history
prior to their arrival. So there is 1,700 years of history on this land, and it's still here.
And I know if we knew more and if we were aware of it, we could preserve it. And if we
don't enforce, for example, the bulldozing and the ripping the land up with the
bulldozers, we would lose things like the pollen record. The pollen record tells us what
plants grew here and we will lose the archaeological record which shows how the people
used the land. So, there is much more that can be done on the whole island if we had
more awareness about the 1,700 years of history that is here for us waiting to learn about.
And I worked on the initial Pat Kearch archaeological digging at Palauea. I'm familiar
with that particular project because I was on that team.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions? Thank you very much. Lisa Hamilton.
MS. HAMILTON: Good evening, everybody. I'm very happy to think that I'll be involved in a
process that I've been interested in ever since I got here. I was on the Community Plan
for the Hana District when it came out in 1992 when we got started. And I've been
involved in the community issues in the Kipahulu area. I've been chairperson of the
Kipahulu Community Association. Thanks to your funds we've built a very interesting
structure there, and we're putting a kitchen in for the use of the community's . . .
(inaudible) . .. And so dealing with how to protect what's here, how to identify
inventory, what's at risk, what's valued, and coming up with a way to try to solve the
problems of saving things, and making the decisions that need to be made. You really
have to know what you have before you know how to protect what is most important.
So, anyhow, I'm really, really hoping to work with everybody involved and I hope that it
will happen.
It seems like it's going to be very, very slow. I understand from what Mike just told us,
we're not going to have a community plan for what - five years, is that what I heard you
say?

MR. FOLEY: The schedule calls for the General Plan-MS. HAMILTON: I mean General Plan.
MR. FOLEY: --including Maui Island Plan to be adopted in two years. But then after we finish
the General Plan Update, we'll embark on updating the nine community plans, probably
three at a time.
MS. HAMILTON: But for the General Plan, it's only two years-MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
MS. HAMILTON: --they're working on.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
MS. HAMILTON: We're already five years late, so ... isn't it? I mean, we had the last one in
1990, so it will be 7 years late then. And what do we do about development and things
happening in the mean time? They will just move along as they are now or there's no
way to put the brakes on while we do this process?
CHAIR TAVARES: No. Any projects moving along are moving along according to the last
General and Community Plan.
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MS. HAMILTON: I see. That's what I assumed. Anyhow, well, thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Any questions, Members? Ifnot, thank you very much, Lisa. And
the Hana people may be excused so you can make your trip back to Hana. Thank you
very much for being here.
Okay, we're going into the next section, which is the Kihei-Makena area. And at this
time, I'll throw you folks a little curve ball and speaking of curve balls, the White Sox
won the championship ... for those of you that might be White Sox fans. Mary Wagner.
We'll start from the bottom of the alphabet this time. Is Mary Wagner here? Jim
Wagner.
MR. WAGNER: Good evening, everyone. I don't have the wealth of background that most of
these people just spoke in the community here. But I have been part of this community
for 20 years almost. I have been a President of the Maui Board of Realtors; I've been a
Vice President of the Hawaii Association of Realtors; I've served on the Boards of both
the Chamber of Commerce and Montessori Hale 0 Keiki. I have been very involved
with my community in a number of different levels and I work with a lot of different
people in the community of all different backgrounds . . . always, almost always
primarily in South Kihei.
I don't have the ... I don't have an agenda for what I would expect of Maui County over
this next several years. I think more than anything else is that I would like to have more
input from our community and hear them say what they would like. Perhaps you'd like
to ask me questions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, thank you. Any questions for Mr. Wagner? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Jim, for volunteering and
for being here tonight. Do you have any understanding of urban growth boundaries?
And if you do, what is your feeling about them?
MR. WAGNER: I have a very limited knowledge of urban growth boundaries mostly of what I
read recently. I do feel that there is a major problem in sprawl right now throughout most
of South Maui. And that is something that has to be controlled far better than it has been.
I'm not in any way anti-development nor what I say that ... all the growth that we've had
has been entirely bad. But I think it needs to be better controlled than what we've had.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good evening, Mr. Wagner. Thank you for
being here.
MR. WAGNER: Db-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If sprawl is an issue and urban growth boundaries is a component
of the general plan, what's your view of vertical development in anticipating population
growth here in the County? High rises.
MR. WAGNER: I don't have ... it depends on what the community wants for itself. There are
some very good reasons to use that type of housing. It's far more economical in trying to
put ... it's very difficult for us to think about putting every single family on a 7,500 sq.
ft. plot of land in a single-family three-bedroom, two-bath house. It's not economically
feasible anywhere in the country. If you can do other things - use vertical housing in that
manner and also give people space around it, don't jam them together to get people park
land around them, give them open space. We need more trees, we need more things like
that in North/South Kihei. Most of the developments that we have new in Kihei right
now are on 5,000 sq. ft. lots with houses a little bit big, there's not a tree in sight in many
of them. To me, that's not a comfortable way to live. I think a high rise could afford
people a home of their home that they could actually afford now because the affordability
factor is just one of the major issues that we're going to have. It's not going to get better.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you very much. Any other questions? If not, thank
you. Next is Stacie Thorlakson.
MS. THORLAKSON: Good evening, Chair and Council Members. Thank you for having me
here today. As submitted in my application, I just kind of wanted to give you a brief little
synopsis. My name is Stacie Thorlakson and I'm here today to introduce myself as a
three-year resident of South Maui who plans to reside here for a long time.
On a personal level, as many of you know me on the business side, but the personal level,
I am a resident who represents the next generation. As a woman who is active in the
community, I play hard and I enjoy paradise. On a professional level as you know me,
the President of Maui Chamber of Commerce, I represent 900 business members
although that's pretty less now because there's a lot of them here in the crowd here
tonight.
I have reviewed the 1990 General Plan and the various topics that are discussed and the
objectives and the policies are relevant today. I also have reviewed Bill 84 and the five
categories Island wide Land Use Strategies Implement Programs, the benchmarks status
reports, the technical plans - they all provide avenues for future implementation. Both
documents are very outlined and are good guidelines for our future and I'd also like to
use those in focus on our vision from MUD, which is Focus Maui Nui. As a member of
their Advisory group, it is important to contribute these findings, and there are some
graphs that I found quite interesting being on that Board. And new residents, 0 to 5
years, which is in my category, make up 17 percent of Focus Maui Nui participants. So
that's a third in this graph. And also in the age distribution, 30 to 39, which is my
category, is 17.9 percent, again, the third in their graph.
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And then I also broke down the categories of Lanai, Molokai and Maui, and talked about
the different categories. Some was health, others was education and all of those we have
to take into consideration and every island is going to be different but we also have to
incorporate it. And as Mike Foley said, that every plan we will have the policies that will
be throughout the islands but then they outbreak down into the different islands. So my
objective is to participate, communicate, and to contribute to the group with the
knowledge base that I have in place along with a visual proactive approach. I will
research items of my uncertainty and I learn from others and want to lean to their
expertise in the GPAC. A desired 20-year vision is seen all elements that constitute the
fundamentals of island living while preserving Maui's unique community characteristics
for a well-balanced and dynamic document that will be implemented in order to continue
and promote a healthy economic environment while promoting livelong living for all of
us who reside in Maui Nui. Thank you for listening, allowing all of us the opportunity to
express our view point, and most importantly, your time. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Stacie, thank you for volunteering -MS. THORLAKSON: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and for coming. You represent 900 Chamber members?
MS. THORLAKSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many of those members voted on your recent report
card that failed the Council for economic development?
MS. THORLAKSON: Touche, Michelle. You know, that is ... that compact report card is
based on the Committee and it is a very diverse group of folks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many?
MS. THORLAKSON: We probably had about 20,25.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Twenty out of 900 voted?
MS. THORLAKSON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Of your resume that you gave us here, you don't
indicate what you did prior to 2002. Could you give us some idea?
MS. THORLAKSON: I was on the mainland in Washington State.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you just moved to Maui in 2002?
MS. THORLAKSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much. \
MS. THORLAKSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions? What was your degree and I see that you're a
Husky?
MS. THORLAKSON: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: What did you study at the University of Washington?
MS. THORLAKSON: I graduated in liberal studies with an emphasis in Arts median culture.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. So what kind of positions were you working in Washington?
MS. THORLAKSON: I was in real estate and I worked for a dot.com company and dealt with
their graphic design marketing department.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you. Any other questions for Ms. Thorkalson? If not,
thank you very much.
MS. THORLAKSON: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, next - Oh, Ron Sturtz just sent us an e-mail to say that he was on the
mainland and would not be able to participate with us this evening. Next, is Raymond
Michael Phillips.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I believe Mr. Sturtz withdrew his name also from the list.
Read the second sentence.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh, okay. This one that we just all got. He has fonnally requested that his
name be withdrawn.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. So, since we do have a fonnal request we will honor his request.
Thank you. Thank you for waiting, Mr. Phillips.
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MR. PHILLIPS: Sure. Good evening and thank you, Commission, for allowing me to testify
this evening. And to date, I've had the pleasure of being on the Urban Design Review
Board at the moment, and also on the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee.
And my background is a Civil Engineer and graduate degree in Human Resource
Management, Systems Management and in Urban Planning. So for me, looking at Maui
and Maui's future, I think the most important or one of the most important things we're
looking at is something that the GP AC and have a great deal to have a hand in and to
advise in and to add some guidance to and that's the immigration of all of our ideas and
what we want to see as our future. And urban planning is the number one thing that
comes to my mind as something as a contribution all of us would have a desire to want to
see this as a beautiful place that facilitates and fulfills people's desires, all of our desires,
be a place where we want to raise our children and grow old and I guess retire in. So, for
me, being able to be on GPAC is an extremely important activity and I do know that it's
going to take a good deal of time, but creativity, the ability to do just as much as I
possibly can and I just want to express a desire to want to be there and do that for Maui
County.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. All right, any questions for Mr. Phillips?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Chair. Thank you for
volunteering, Raymond. I see that you belong to two committees
Urban Design
Review Board as well as the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee. In regards
to the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee, how often do you folks meet?
MR. PHILLIPS: We've had the meetings not as often as they could be. Seldom.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Seldom.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So as far as being on the GPAC, shouldn't be a problem
in regards to time?
MR. PHILLIPS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Raymond, for coming
tonight and for all your volunteer service to the County. Has the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee reviewed proposed changes to Title 19?
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MR. PHILLIPS: Not that I know of personally. I'm on the Committee as of ... approximately
three months ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So you have a five-year term still ahead of you?
MR. PHILLIPS: I have a five-year term.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how about the Urban Design Review Board?
MR. PHILLIPS: Correct. Approximately another four years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions? If not, thank you very much, Mr.
Phillips.
MR. PHILLIPS: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, next is Susan Moikeha.
MS. MOIKEHA: Good evening. My name is Susan Moikeha and I live in the Kihei area and
I'm part of the Kihei-Makena Community Plan area. I feel like I've come full circle. It
was some time in 1997 that I first became acquainted with what a community plan was.
And having had been in a process that took me through a four-year period, I began to
understand what makes up a community plan, how it relates to a General Plan and began
to see some areas that I thought we could do better. And as a result of that, I applied for
the Planning Commission and was appointed in this very room back in 2001. And my
term will end March of 96, uh, 2006. And I say I've come full circle because I came
from a perspective of knowing nothing about how General Plan and community plans
work and how significant they are and how significant the process is, and what you hope
to gain from it all.
Having been serving on the Maui Planning Commission for almost five years now has
been what I call Planning 101, and I'm still learning. They say by the time you get to the
fifth year you're real comfortable, you understand it, and you're doing well. But to me,
it's still a learning experience. Having had that experience brings not only learning but
hopefully knowledge and working knowledge. And so I'm very familiar with what and
how we use General Plan in developing, how we use it in approving projects, how we use
it in projecting environment, not only the General Plan but as well as the community
plans. And every area is very different and unique. And if you look at the community
plans, they tell you that. They vary from where they put their ... (CHANGE TAPE - IB
STARTS) ... infrastructure, et cetera. And when you look at a General Plan, to me, it's a mission
statement. It assesses where you are right now and where you want to go in the future. I think
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what has happened here is something great to be a part of and I applaud these people in the
audience for being here willingly giving of their time.
Having served in a commission that's, uh, that requires a lot, we meet twice a month for five
years. We have a reading material about a novel size a week before the meeting. We've been
charged with a great responsibility in reviewing projects within the SMA area. We are
recommending ... we make recommendations to this body on zoning and other land use projects.
It was an awesome experience and it takes a lot of time. So, I have somewhat of an experience to
understand what it's going to take for the next two years to be a part of a group that has been
charged with an awesome responsibility. What drives somebody to do that, uh, for me, it's
passion. I feel very strongly about the kind of time that I put into things that I volunteer in.
I'm probably classified as a professional volunteer. I've probably had more work experience as a
volunteer than as a professional person but I pick and choose certain things that I love to do. And
I loved my experience on the Planning Commission. It has brought new insights, again,
knowledge of trying to balance economic growth with protecting the environment and that is so
difficult. Learning and reading and studying and learning all over again with each different
application, being associated with planners, staff, the public, their passions, the applicant, all of it,
it puts you in a position where you finally come down to having to make decisions and that's
difficult. I don't think I ever felt that I or regretted a decision I made on any project. And part of
the reason of that is and what I think is helpful to understand about people here is that, yeah,
experience is great and you bring something too what you involve in with that experience, but a
lot of it is how you think. And if you're willing to be open-minded, if you're not so set in certain
perspectives
whether it's development side or environmental side, I think you're a good
candidate. And I've learned, I feel I have that quality but I've also learned to enhance that quality
to be open-minded to all different views of a matter. We're going to have to come to decisions of
establishing policies and we're going to have to agree on that, and objectives. But I think what
has happened with the process that really excites me is that I think it's a great process. For the
first time we're going to have land use maps attached to the General Plan. That's never been
done before. And I know urban growth boundaries make people nervous and it was a contention
when it came before us as a review under Bill 84. And all I can say to that is you'll have studies,
you'll have carrying capacities that will tell you what is designated for that area. It will tell us by
what the designations are for that area and how much more we can grow. And we can always reevaluate as we go, and hopefully, the more education we have on that and we get it out there and
awareness, it will help to lessen those fears. But I think it's needed. I think we need to know
where we're going. It can't just be decided one little project at a time because we're losing the
perspective ofthe whole, and I think that's what's the important part of the General Plan.

CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Susan. You covered a whole lot of things in there. Thank you.
Any questions from the Members? I think we're all pretty familiar with your work and
thank you for the service you've provided for our community on the Planning
Commission.
MS. MOIKEHA: Okay.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you.
MS. MOIKEHA: Thank you.
- 13 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 26, 2005

CHAIR TAVARES: Paul Gomez. Is Paul here? You actually have three minutes and about a
minute to conclude and I'll kind of give you the high sign. When you see me grab the
microphone, that's the sign. Thank you.
MR. GOMEZ: Aloha, good evening, everyone. My name is Paul. I've ... lucky enough to
follow Susan. I would eagerly give up my seat for her because she is very passionate
about what she said here.
I love this place. I moved here 23 years ago and found home in the middle of the Pacific
and have since thought about how I would pay it back. And so, when I'm not frustrated
about the slow government and when I'm not frustrated about the reactionary government
instead of proactionary [sic} government, I decide to do things about it. So I joined
community associations and boards and sometimes, actually, even better for me as a
person I clean up the reef, and I clean up the highway and I go to the high schools and try
to hire kids for summer jobs in hotels and I do it in a very, very sort of small way. But I
feel like I'm doing something that makes life better.
I don't think that, realistically speaking, we can't stop growth. Growth just keeps
happening and so we need to come to terms with absorbing the growth and balancing the
growth and realizing that it's not a separate value that, you know, a healthy economy
especially in our community which is hospitality and doesn't necessarily mean a lesser
quality of life. It actually enhances it because the reason that people come here is that we
are so special. So I try to approach things from a very positive way and I think that when
all is said and done have so many pluses here and so many blessings and what a great
place we live in. And yeah, we can tweak this and we can tweak that, and the General
Plan is a process and the process of the passionate people that are in this room then just
makes me feel great because you know what - we all want the same thing and we all
want it, hopefully, without an individual agenda or ego but just because we want to have
a better Maui and we want to be able to say, you know, I participated in something and it
makes me feel warm about it. So that's all I got to say.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. GOMEZ: Thanks.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any questions for Mr. Gomez? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening, Mr. Gomez.
Looking over your resume and, as you stated, you're very busy and active with the
hospitality industry on Maui. Now, recently, Maui County again was voted the best
island in the world I believe for the lih straight year. Now, with your perspective from
the visitor industry, can you briefly share with us what you believe why Maui County is, I
guess, Maui County as a whole is recognized as the best island in the world consistently
over a long time? And how do we maintain this, I guess, recognition for our visitors and
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how do we also achieve satisfaction for our residents who have to live with growth as you
shared with us earlier?
MR. GOMEZ: Conde Nast publication puts out ... I don't know the numbers exactly but let's
say 10,000 feelers out there and I think 1,600 people or so wrote back and I think what
gets me more is the consistency of the readership of this very upscale magazine that
continues to feel that way about this island. And the factors are many. It has public
safety is one of them, comfort restaurants, amenities, you know, I go back to the
blessings, we have four atmospheres here. We have incredible amenities for the visitor.
All of those amenities, by the way, are available to all of us whether we want to partake
in them or not. The way it affects the residents, the way it affects me from time to time is
that, you know, while we're here tonight there's someone walking down Front Street who
just had a mai tai and it's a couple and they're walking hand-in-hand and they can't wait
to go home sell everything they've got and come here and buy something a business or
a house and we can't stop that because they're intoxicated and they're intoxicated by the
same reason that we all got intoxicated at one point. It's an appealing lifestyle and it's a
wonderful place to raise children. So, what we need to do, the process, the planning, the
reason that I'm here is you have a say with other people collectively bringing in their own
thoughts and ideas as to how you make those things happen, how you control them. I
heard about, you know, high rise and some of those things are inevitable as much as it
make you cringe because that might be the affordable way to do things. Now, where
would they go and how would they go, you know, generating power on this island and
the way we do it now and how other places do it. You know, that argument always is a
real bad argument to have here but there are lots and lots of technology and lots of ways
to do things and if you research them and if you study them and if they are applicable to
you and they work for you as a community, then they should be given at least a valid
point on the agenda to be sort of thought out. And I think that that's what the people in
the Planning do, and that's what I hope to do.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh, thank you, Madam Chair. Paul, thank you very much
for being here tonight. As you are in the industry, do you believe that we should limit
visitor industry growth?
MR. GOMEZ: I don't think that's reasonable. That would be like saying you can limit, you
know, how much sugar you sell or how much product you sell in whatever industry that
you're in. I think it's limited by the amount of inventory that exists, and then we sell sort
of the critical mass and then so now people are renting homes and houses and rooms in
their houses and so forth.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you don't feel that we should limit visitor industry
growth?
MR. GOMEZ: I ... I'm familiar with very successful resort communities, model communities.
Whistler, for example, was built in a place and is used as a model in visitor and
hospitality because of the way it was built. And the way they limit it is because it's
excise. We are ... our formula would be, we have excise .. , So, if we allow growth, if
we allow hotels, if we allow those kinds of entities to grow, then we can't limit it. So the
philosophical approach that Maui and our visitor industry took 20, 25 years ago, which is
to market at the upscale market, I think in the long term has kind of protected Maui in
many ways. It also brought in the clientele though who could buy up anything that they
wanted so, can we limit it? Do you mean, the planes full you can't come any more? The
th
hotels are all full. We're all full from December 15th to April 15 . We really are. And
with the storms in Florida and with some of the social unrest in Bali and places like that,
you know, it's very unfortunate for them but we're turning people away now at least with
the colleagues that I speak with and Four Seasons that's, you know, so the market place is
taking care of that. Could we have more people here in May? I suppose so. Is it a nice
break for everybody in hospitality in May? Yeah, and we look forward to it because it
kind of gives a chance to decompress and take care of, you know, maintenance issues and
housekeeping stuff. So, we won't be able to limit it if we continue to add inventory
because that's the nature of the business.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you don't believe that we should limit it? That's my
question.
MR. GOMEZ: Yeah, I don't believe it's reasonable to think that you can limit it
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The reason that I asked you that, Paul, is because in our
current General Plan it does call to limit the growth of visitor industry and to diversify
our economy from the visitor economy, and we are limited in the size of our island and
the amount of our resources that we have to share with visitors. So because you're in the
industry, I wanted to know what your feelings were. Thank you for sharing that.
MR. GOMEZ: You're welcome.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Gomez. Next is, Lawrence Franco.
Lawrence here? Okay, Joseph Bertram III. .
MR. BERTRAM: Good evening, Council people. I just have a question. I wasn't here at the
beginning so I wasn't sure what the format was. Get up and ...
CHAIR TAVARES: Tell us about yourself. You've got three minutes and a minute to ...
MR. BERTRAM: In a vision or just ...
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CHAIR TAVARES: Anything you want.
MR. BERTRAM: Anything ... okay. Well, my vision is, I don't know, most of you know me
by now. Been a 40-year resident of Maui and served on the Planning Commission,
served on the KCA Board of Directors for many years. I'm head of Greensway Maui,
which is a nonprofit group dedicated to establishing a pathway system around the island.
These all relate to the General Plan that exists right now. I really didn't want to apply for
this. I didn't apply until the last day mainly because of what it said in The Maui News.
Here's 29 people, this small group of people who are going to make big decisions for our
County. And that's not my vision. My vision is that we get hundreds of people,
thousands of people involved in the process of re-inventing our community plan and reinventing democracy. We cannot do this by committee any more. We need to do it
where we involve the entire populous of our island. I brought ... this is designing the
future conference, re-inventing democracy. This is by Mayor Rick Cole who they got
3,000 people in their City of Pasadena to take part in creating a new General Plan. In
Chattanooga they got over 10,000 people. I just read about one on the Internet where
through workshops and meetings and outreach through churches and on the Internet they
got over 27,000 people to have a say in their new community plan. And that, to me, is
what we need. We need to pick people to be able to be in a situation where they're not
three minutes reacting to some kind of a proposal that's put before them but they get to
sit with other people and talk about things that really mean something to them face-toface and come up with good ideas then that rises to the top because they're just good
ideas and everybody can recognize them as such. This is the charette process - the new .
. . that Maui Land & Pine is taking up with it, A & B is taking up with it. It's time for
County government to open up to that too. So I decided to become part of this so not
only to envision a community that I see in 20 years would be a series of small towns just
as envisioned in our community plan connected by trains just as we used to be that's all
walkable and bikeable with a fully-established open space master plan so we know where
all our open spaces are, we'll know where urban growth boundaries go because we know
where the open space is and we know where all the cultural places are, we know where
the historical places are and they're mapped out and they're put there. It's a process but
it can be done. But we need to, on the second part involve a whole hell of a lot more
people in this process. People need to buy into it. They need to feel an ownership of this
and it's not going to be by three minutes. It's going to be by an actual participation in the
process. If I'm put on this, that's going to be my focus. It's not only looking for that
vision that we've already expressed in our General Plan and in our community plans and
just about every plan we've made. I was also on the Smart Growth Conference Advisory
Committee that we also came up with the same kind of a plan. So it's not anything new.
But what is new is that we've got to find a new way of involving our populous in a better,
more proactive way. That's it.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Bertram? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good evening.
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MR. BERTRAM: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Bertram, you've compelled me to ask this question.
MR. BERTRAM: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
government?

And the question I ask

IS,

are you against representative

MR. BERTRAM: No, I just don't see it. We haven't really established it here. We are the only
State in the Union that doesn't have municipal governments so everything stops here at
the County level and so decisions are made here that should be made in Wailuku or
should be made in Kihei, should be made in Lahaina, should be made in Hana. That's
where those decisions should be made. And for the life of me I can't understand why we
can't start making decisions those way. It's a very cumbersome process to have nine
people making decisions for 150,000 people when there's only person that's actually
representing our district and that person himself has to get votes from everybody. So,
there's really no accountability. At the Kihei Community Association we're trying our
best but we're just volunteers but we're still trying our best to try to represent what the
community would like to say because we live there and we talk with people where we
live and throughout our daily existence so we have a better idea, I think, myself that it's a
town hall, it's the smallest you can get down government to the people themselves that's
truly representative of government. So we need to get away from just the few to the
many.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just a follow up question, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I'll wrap it up. I'm listening.
MR. BERTRAM: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, no, really. So I'll ask you this.
MR. BERTRAM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Based on what you've said relevant to your hesitance to apply for
this because I guess this has been packaged in such a way that you found unacceptable it
seems.
MR. BERTRAM: It seems limiting.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And yet you're here. So I need to ask you, what do you bring to
the table that will contribute to what we have before us that will create a better, you
know, something that's better than what we have and move us forward?
MR. BERTRAM: Well, I think I have the experience that I have worked with ... I was part of
the group that put together the Kihei 2000 Kihei Community Association's Community
Plan amendment that we adopted back in 1998 .. I've been on the Planning Commission
and I've been in these various bodies so I understand the process that you go through and
the give and take of these types of committee-types of work. But I've also had a lot of
experience recently in talking with developers, working with landowners and seeing how
we can incorporate not just the community but everybody in the community. But I feel
that I can reach out to all segments of the community and work to create adjunct types of
processes outside of just our 29 people that would help to inform this process that has
been set up that is limited but that doesn't mean that other things can't be going on.
Focus Maui Nui was a good example of that but there's others as well. I mean, we could
put together as I was talking with ... (inaudible) ... we could put together, get together
with some of the landowners and some community groups and actually put together an
open space plan. I mean, there's nothing in this that says we can't. And then that could
be a great resource for the 29 folks that are making those decisions. So I'm just trying to
say that it's not government that can do it all. It really is, has to be a partnership with the
development community, with the community, with business owners, with even the
common guy on the street, somebody who has never had a chance ever to have a say in
just how his community should be put together and I want to explore those ways and I
think it's all doable. I think it's just up to, ifpeople feel strongly that they'd like to see
that type of participation it will happen.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
MR. BERTRAM: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Bertram. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good evening, Joe. Thank you for coming.
MR. BERTRAM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The way I understand that part of the process is that
when the committee meets it's going to be open to the public and the public can also
participate in regards to the General Plan update. Community plans - I know the
community plan update is going to following, well, certain plans are going to be taking
off soon and, hopefully, at that time things that you mentioned that in regards to the
community plan, you know, people from that community would help orchestrate the
planning process. So I just wanted to make that comment.
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MR. BERTRAM: Oh, great.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any further questions? Thank you, Mr. Bertram.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank you. Joseph Warner Bean.
MR. BEAN: Good evening. Thank you for having me here. I almost feel like I don't have a
right to be on this committee only because I've only been receiving my mail on Maui for
a very short period oftime. When I came here, I'll try not to get emotional about that but
I'll move through it quickly so it won't matter. I was planning to be here on October l'
2001, which would have been my 59th visit to Maui. And then I think you remember
some of the flights were cancelled and so forth and I thought I wouldn't make it here.
That's when I decided sitting in Chicago that's when I decided to move my mailbox here
and see if I ever thought of a reason to go the other way. And my intention was to take
the first available flight. Had a little trouble disconnecting in Chicago but the amazing
thing is my flight at the beginning of the October actually was uncancelled so I got here.
That was flight 59, I mean my 59 th trip and my 60 th trip which was two months later is
when I moved here to stay. To some extent September 11th had something to do with
that, but to some extent something very important to the process we're talking about right
now had something to do with that too.
In San Francisco and then later in Chicago I got involved in community organizations

that were attempting to save what had earlier been greener more park-like family
neighborhoods. And in San Francisco is Bernal Heights. If you know the city ... you
probably don't know Bernal Heights and that was our intention that no one who didn't
live there would ever find a reason to drive through. As you know on Maui, the version
ofthat, that we have is called the gated community and I'm not sure how I feel about that.
But that's not what we created. And in Chicago, it was the Andersonville Rodgers Park
area, which was disintegrating rapidly from being ignored, and so we developed ...
actually we ended up with three community associations 'cause there were people who
didn't like each other. But we worked together anyway. And again, we got the trees put
back, we opened several blocks that had been dilapidated buildings to make parks again.
And all of that was always on my mind when I would be visiting Maui in those years and
I was thinking, is anyone who lives here looking?
You know, the first time I drove out of the airport and saw big buildings instead of
pineapples, I thought, does anyone know that there are visitors coming here and their first
impression of Maui has just changed from the scent of the trade winds blowing across
pineapple fields to the sound of forklifts banging into the wall at COSTCO and that, that
might change the experience of Maui for someone? But there was not a lot I could do
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about it when I got here. I mean, mind you, I'm not a rich person; I'm not a retired
person not by a long shot. So about all I could do is write smart growth articles, I think
you've seen some of those. But being a journalist, you don't get to rant, you don't get to
make a fuss, you don't really get to express or promote your opinion. You can only hope
that people figure out what's going on, and I think this is my opportunity to put 59 visits
of two to three weeks each plus these last several years, and my experience in other
communities to work on ... not just ... I believe the clock can be turned back. I want to
preserve what we can but I believe the clock can be turned back in terms of what we have
lost to some extent and how Hawaiian and how Mauian Maui is and we can do that while
still accommodating the inevitable growth and some of the answers are going to be
unpleasant. I think maybe, for instance, as you said, Mr. Kane, it might be that we have
to look at vertical development. But for instance, in South Maui, yeah, I said, sure
vertical development mauka of Piilani so that it's not destroying the coastal community.
I don't want vertical development in places that ought to be parks and bike paths or
coastal walkways and I don't want them on top ofheiaus. Urn ... enough?
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Questions? Mr. Kane, then Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Mr. Bean. And I just want to
clarify, Madam Chair, I don't have a question but I just want to clarify that I am not an
advocate for vertical growth nor am I an opponent of it.
MR. BEAN: Oh, no, no ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, let me finish and I just want to make it clear that I
asked that question because it was relevant, in my opinion, to the person whose
background.
MR. BEAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so I asked that question simply to inquire and not to take a
position on. So, please ...
MR. BEAN: No, I understand. I said, as you asked. I didn't say as you advocated.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. So Ijust wanted to make that clear.
CHAIR TAVARES: Alright, thanks.
MR. BEAN: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Ms. Anderson:
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. Joseph, thank you very much
for volunteering and for being here tonight. I have found a lot of pleasure in reading the
reviews that you do, is it every week? Yes, it is every week. Isn't it?
MR. BEAN: What, the book reviews?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The book reviews you do.
MR. BEAN: It has been, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because they're all on Hawaiiana.
MR. BEAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're all books about Hawaii. It used to be, and not that
long ago, where there were articles about early Hawaiian times in our newspapers, and
we don't have that any more or very rarely. I don't see it any more except the book
reviews that you do. And so that shows that you have a real interest in Hawaiiana. And
you say that ... (CHANGE TAPE - 2A starts) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Future Maui is more distinctly itself more Hawaiian.
Could you give us an idea of how you envision Maui being more Hawaiian?
MR. BEAN: Maybe make COSTCO put up hedges of some kind of native plant. I mean, first
thing first. I really, really dislike what happens to the visitors and their first five-minutes
on this island. I think to a large extent being more Hawaiian means at this point because
we can't ask people to tear down development. Well, maybe we can in some rare cases if
they've done something distinctly wrong or legally inappropriate. But to a large extent it
has to do with decorating what is there and perhaps then controlling what the appearance
of future development will be. Some developers tend to develop things that look like
they belong here. Some very big buildings that have been done relatively recently do not
disturb me in the least - the new Kaiser Medical Building. I don't know why, it just feels
okay. It feels like it fits in to that place that it's in. And of course, the view from the hill
coming out of Wailuku there is about electric lines rather than Haleakala at the moment
anyway. So, there you go. That's one thing that would make it more Hawaiian if we had
more palm trees than electric poles, which it might in some areas be achieved by I know
of very complicated negotiations with developers that could get more of the utilities
underground so that the community is about looking at the community and not looking at
the utilities that serve the community.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. How will you reconcile your role as a reporter and serve on
the GPAC?
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MR. BEAN: Well, as of November 5th I'm not a reporter -- my first hourly job since I was 16
and the first time I was fired since that job.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Too many Hawaiian book reviews.
MR. BEAN: Well, the book reviews were canceled on the same day. So I was told that I might
be able to continue to do some things. I think that it is an issue and if you want to, I
mean, you guys have to decide if it's an issue in terms of my getting onto the
commission. But after that, if I'm still writing, I think it behooves me to be careful about
what I write about because by having that public platform in which to make statements, I
could but I wouldn't but still I could attract to myself more authority on the Commission
or more voice within the community than the Commission itself has and it just wouldn't
let that happen. At the moment, I'm writing mostly for businesses, including if you get
this out because it should come out, it wasn't there at the time of the application, I think,
or it was very new. The Realtors Association of Maui is one of the ... one of my clients
now, which works out really well for me because Keoni Ball, I think you must all know
him, became the President of the Association and then they hired me to write the articles
and it took me a moment to get that they actually wanted something I'm willing to do and
that is promoting not real estate offices or developments but the good work that is being
done by realtors and how realtors are serving the community. It turns out we have way
more subjects to write about than I have time to do. So it's going to be a bit of a dance
and I'll have to discipline myself about how my access to the media might change my
voice or position, but I assure you, promise you all that I would discipline myself as
needed.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening, Mr. Bean. Thank
you for being here. With regards to your desired vision of Maui County over the next 20
years, in your application and I quote you made a statement where it states, visitors must
not rule Maui but they should be accommodated first, excuse me, should be just
accommodated. Can you elaborate a little bit more on that statement and then tell us how
you plan to tie in this part of your vision in your role as a potential GP AC Member as it
relates to the planning process.
MR. BEAN: No soft balls tonight, uh? Okay. Visitors do rule many places in the United States.
They rule especially like ski resorts and things where the visiting period is seasonal and
incredibly intense. To some extent, Maui is moving now. I don't think, do not at this
moment, believe that visitors rule this island. I think they may, we may spend more of
our money and resources on them than we really need to but I ... that's not a GPAC
question, frankly. And we may spend more of our land on them than we really need to.
That might become a GPAC question. But they don't rule here as they do in seasonal
areas, but I've noticed over the last 30 years that the tourist season has kind of been
enlarging. We get maybe 14 days in May and 9 in September that are out of season now.
The rest of it is tourist season. In order to not have them rule Maui, we have to put the
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needs of residents first, and I mean, first. Yes, okay, we may need another hotel, we may
need another resort, we may even find areas that we have never thought of and put resorts
there, I don't know. But every single time the question is, shall we or shall we not do this
accommodation for the visitors then I say, let's first ask ourselves if we say, yes, to that,
how does it impact residents? Not how will it impact the bank account of the developer
or the bank account of the County for that matter or the tax rolls of the State but how will
it affect the residents, and that's what I mean about that they must not rule. We still have
to accommodate them and accommodating them does not mean that we can't say no to
them sometimes. We can say, okay, there's no more room in our airport or there's no
more rooms in our hotels. I know I'm at risk of sounding like Linda Lingle saying that
stuff about you don't try to limit growth by not providing infrastructure. Does anyone
remember that from her speech here on Maui a couple of years ago? But the truth is we
can accommodate the visitors that we are glad to have and we can probably even let the
visitor industry grow some but I don't think we can allow ourselves to make lasting ...
decisions that will have lasting importance without asking ourselves first, first, first, what
would will it affect beyond residents especially working people like me.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Bean.
MR. BEAN: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Alright, Members, that concludes the Kihei-Makena Plan area. We are
going to take a break for ten minutes and then we will begin the Wailuku-Kahului
General Plan Advisory applications. Okay. We'll be in recess until 20 to eight. ...
(gavel) . ..

RECESS:

7:32 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:49 p.m.

CHAIR TAVARES: Meeting please come back to order. Reconvene. Thank you, Members.
We will now begin the Wailuku-Kahului region and we'll start at the top of the alphabet
this time. I'll just keep you folks guessing. Okay. Renee Filimoeatu. It's too late
already. Kehau. Here we go.
MS. FILIMOEATU: Aloha. Aloha, Maui County Committee for the GPAC. My name is
Renee-May Kehaulani Lum Ho Filimoeatu. And except for a one-year stint at a
Kamehameha Prep School, as a homesick seventh grader, and except for the time spent at
U. H. Manoa for four years, and except for the time spent traveling abroad and seeing
what I had wanted to see of the world, I have lived on Maui all my life. Born at what was
once an orphanage maintained by nuns now only marked by a plaque and I can't
remember what it says. I know how it was to have Wakea Avenue and the old Maui
County Fairgrounds in a swampy parking lot. Wakea Avenue is now a major
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thoroughfare and I can attest to that as it is now almost impossible to get in and out of my
driveway at that comer. I know how it was to have nothing by kiawe trees lining South
Kihei Road from the start to the finish when Wailea wasn't even in my list of place
names.
I played in Paia where referred to the plantation camps as either Upper Paia or Lower
Paia. And we would go to movies at the Princess Theater, which was in Lower Paia. I
attended what they called an English standard school that is now a renowned Senior
Citizens Center called Kaunoa.
I went to Kamehameha Schools on a dare because my mom wanted to be proud that at
least one of her children could pass the test that separated those of us who would be able
to attend as the elite few that made it to Oahu. But I disappointed my mother when I
returned to finish at Kaunoa and then went on Baldwin High School to become a product
of the public school system.
This evening I come before you as someone wanting an in. I come because my kupuna
have told me to malama. And I am humbled by that kuleana and honored by the
challenge. I have not only witnessed but have felt Maui grow, Maui blossom, coming to
being a prize commodity, a destination premiere. I have also been privy to feeling her
pains, her aches, her frustrations and wonderment. My kuleana is to take care that what I
enjoyed and loved when I was a child is preserved for generations not yet here. Already I
am unable to take my children, let alone my grandchildren to beaches that I used for fun
and food, to streams we could cross with only asking those things that grew there for
permission, to places where we called secret to the neighborhood kids such as a flume or
that special popolo patch. And because of all of this, I offer myself as a candidate to be
in on the GP AC. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions for Kehau? If not, thank you very much,
Kehau. Kent Hiranaga.
MR. HIRANAGA: Good evening, Council members. My name is Kent Hiranaga. I was born in
Puunene, raised in Wailuku, I'm a third generation Hiranaga in this family. My family
has been here almost a hundred years. There are, I believe, five generations of Hiranagas
on this island now.
I was educated through the public school system. I did earn a Bachelor's of Science
Degree in Accounting from Indiana University in 1979. There upon I lived in the Bay
Area for about four years working for General Electric and Hewlett Packard. In 1982, I
returned to Maui. I worked for a small business, a family business. I worked for a
medium-size corporation and, currently, I own my own business. I've served on the
Board of Variance and Appeals from 1996 to 2001. I'm currently serving on the Board
of Water Supply from 2001 and my term expires in March of2006.
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I guess what my thoughts are for the future is that Maui needs to provide affordable
housing, fulfilling occupations for our local people, challenges so that the educated and
qualified people don't move to the mainland. And also we need to preserve our local
lifestyle. I'm open to questions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Hiranaga? Okay, seeing none. Thank
you very much, Kent..
MR. HIRANAGA: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Robert Horcajo.
MR. HORCAJO: Hi. Good evening. My name is Bob Horcajo. I've been a resident of
Wailuku for about four, five years now. And I moved back to Maui back in 1975 so
about 30 years. Aside from starting a small window washing business, I've had my real
estate license since 1976. I've had my own company, real estate company since 1979.
I've been involved in a lot of entitlement processes through the County whether it be
SMA, Conditional Use Permit, CDUA with the State. Through my real estate practice,
I'm very knowledgeable of land use laws; a lot of expertise there. In real estate business,
I mean, I consider myself my major focus is trying to find a win-win situation for my
clients. And I feel that I bring that and a lot of common sense to what the GP AC will
have to process in the next couple of years. That's all I've got to say right now.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Any questions, Members? If not, thank you for
volunteering, Bob.
MR. HORCAJO: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Philip Drew Johnson.
MR. JOHNSON: Madam Chair and Council Members, thank you for putting up with these long,
arduous hours. I know you guys go through a lot. My name is Phil Johnson. Some of
you know me through the work that I do with Maui AlA, American Institute of
Architects. And the Maui Outdoor Lighting bill, which is soon to be coming ... the new
draft version will be coming in front of you. So I've been involved in issues, County
issues, for the last several years. Those are the two prime examples. I have a son that
was born and raised here and is now a Sophmore at Baldwin High School. I've had an
opportunity and I think good fortune of being able to live and work in many places
throughout Maui Island, through Makawao and Haiku and South Maui, Kihei, and
Kaanapali and currently in Wailuku and also in Waikapu. And I mention that because I
think it helps ground the diversity that we have on this island. It's such a unique,
wonderful spot. It has great potential. We have such a beautiful place to live. But that
diversity of that both political, economic, and environmental life that we all share is what
we need to be able to preserve, and the planning process is one small way of being able to
preserve that. So, I'm in favor of good planning. It's going to be a long, I think, and
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maybe even arduous process to be able to come up with what that good plan is. But I
think reasonable people and people that are of like-mind and like-heart will be able to do
that and I hope you consider me for that. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Phil. Any questions for Phil? Seeing none. Thank you very
much. Natalie Kama.
MS. KAMA: Aloha, Members of the Maui County Council Planning Committee. Whenever I
give a testimony about anything in front of anyone, I always do it with the intent of my
11 children and my 15 grandchildren. But always remembering that with each year
passes and one of my children graduate from school, they go to the mainland. So I
currently out of my 11 children, I only have 5 children living here on Maui. So my
testimony is always based on that premise.
My name is Natalie Tasha Kama. I am a resident of Wailuku and of native Hawaiian
ancestry. I'd like to ask for your consideration in allowing me seat on the General Plan
Advisory Committee representing a native perspective with a slant toward the more than
32,000 acres of Hawaiian Home lands on Maui. The host culture has been misplaced and
I would like to be a part of that process that puts them back to where they belong. Land
use planning must benefit those who are born and raised and die here and are gonna be
buried here. Considerations must always been given first to those whose roots go deep or
else Maui will cease to be MauL I believe in forward movement but that movement must
have balance. We can no longer put others before we put our own Maui residents. We
need to ensure a strong and healthy economy so that our children do not have to leave
home to survive, so that our local people don't need to live one pay check away from
homelessness. We need to meet the basic needs of our local people and much of that can
happen with balanced land use planning.
I thank all of you for allowing me the privilege to address the Council this evening.
Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Natalie. Any questions for the testifier? Ifnot, thank you very
much for being here. Kallie Keith.
MS. KEITH: I'd like to thank the Council and perhaps the County government, in general, for
even offering something like the opportunity for the citizens to participate in general
planning. I know it's done in a lot of places but it's not done everywhere, and so I think
that shows us some vision.
About me ... I moved to Maui four years ago. My background and what I can bring to
this group I think is ... I did bio-medical research for about 15 years and that really
doesn't apply to planning very much but I think I learned to look at issues before me in a
way that you have to be this passionate to do research and do it well because if you have
a bias when you go in, you get it wrong, you spend a lot of time and waste a lot of time.
And so, I feel like I'm pretty well able to look at a broad range of research and
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information, look at it deeply and try to come to reasonable point of view about what
needs to be balanced, not whether I'm the person to make the decisions about balancing.
That's another question, I think, that we really need as much input as possible in order to
have enough and good information about what the plan should be. And I also think that a
broad range of points is really crucial. So that's kind of my perspective.
In terms of my background here on Maui, I worked on this Mayor's Cruise Ship Task
Force and this is a report that came out recently and I hope that all of you Council
Members have gotten a copy and had a chance to look at it, and those of you in the
community also. So, I'll just leave it there.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you very much. Any questions for Ms. Keith? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Madam Chair. And Ms. Keith, thank you for being
here. Because you have background in research, my question will be this. When you're
presented and in no way there is no offense to our Planning Department or anybody else
but I ask this question because it will help me understand better how you think. When
you're presented material and information, are you going to demonstrate being able to
look outside of what's presented to you, in other words, other pieces of information that
may dispute information in front of you? Let me expand on that. If you're given
projections of future growth regarding population growth or water availability or, you
know, even going further and talking about energy and how it's going to relate to how we
draw our circles on the map, our urban growth boundaries, are you willing to engage
yourself and provide information that may create some dispute and debate in this group
that we're going to have?
MS. KEITH: Well, I think in doing research that's what you end up doing a lot. And the best
research you really try to look for all the information you can. And if your information,
your data, doesn't agree with your hypothesis, then you've got to reshape your
hypothesis. I mean, that's been my experience. And so I think if I had two conflicting
pieces of information on one topic, I would try to look at the source of those pieces of
information and how deeply grounded they are in fact, and use those as a way of those
kinds of considerations as a way of deciding which information was most useful.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so one step further because you're working in a collective
group articulating that information that you've drawn a conclusion on based on the
information that you gathered and have validated, if you will, how do you think you
would engage the other members to consider what findings you may have made versus
what has been presented?
MS. KEITH: Well, I guess what I would try to do is present my understanding of the material as
much as possible. That's one of the things that I think I'm best at is trying to take a lot of
complex information, distill it down and make it kind of clear to ... {inaudible} . .. the
audience. By that time I mean, ... {inaudible} ... audience. And so that's probably one
role I enjoy playing is, you know, sort of presenting the information and then letting the
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group discuss it and making sure that all of the pertinent issues were part of the
discussion. It's not up to me to decide. It's up to me to make sure that whatever I find or
know or have learned is out there.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Ms. Keith. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Keith? If not, thank you very
much. Jeremy Kozuki has informed the Chair that he is ill and unable to attend this
evening. Eric Matsuda e-mailed and said he was not able to attend tonight. Our next
person is Dennis Okimoto.
MR. OKIMOTO: Good evening. My name is Dennis Okimoto. I was not born and raised on
Maui. I was born and raised in Honolulu. I've been on Maui since 1977. I think that's
an advantage to this Committee because I've lived in the urban sprawl, I've lived in the
traffic congestion, and I really don't like it. That was back in 1977. The biggest reason
why I decided to move to Maui I started doing auditing on Maui in 1973, big difference
between Honolulu and Maui. In Honolulu, people walk around they'll look you in the
eye, they don't say hi. They just kind of walk pass. Tough fear. Came to Maui, walked
around the shopping center, people looked at you, strangers, they smile. I was
flabbergasted. I said I gotta move here and I finally did. And I've been in ... first, I
lived in Kihei and then I moved to, I've been in Kahului since 1987 so I've been here for
quite a while.
The problems of growth are very difficult to approach. There's no 100 percent correct
answer. I really liked hearing the different responses. I really like hearing the different
approaches. I really loved the Hawaiiana approach, really, the culture approach. I think
with a blend ofthe various people ... (CHANGE TAPE - 2B starts) . .. The Council has a
very difficult decision on who to select but I hope the blend is very correct. You have my
background on the sheet so I'll be glad to answer any questions.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Okimoto. Any questions for the testifier? Okay. If
not, thank you very much. Dale Parsons.
MR. PARSONS: I'm Dale Parsons. My wife and I were married on Maui in 1987. At the time,
we were living in New York City and ... in an apartment building on the 32nd floor at
56 th and Broadway. Shortly after we were married, when we found out that Jennie was
pregnant, we decided that New York wasn't the place where we wanted to raise our son.
So, around 1990 we made the decision to move to Maui to raise our son in an area where
he was safe, in a place where the environment and the culture played a big part in raising
our son. And it's a decision that we've never regretted and I suspect that Jennie and I
will be here the rest of our lives.
Joe Bertram earlier mentioned the importance of community participation and I think on
a committee like this it's very, very important that whoever is on the committee listens to
the people that are at the meetings, of course, that come from the Committee or come to
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the Committee meetings. But it's also important that they take the time to go out and talk
to the people out on the street, the people in the public to find out what their views are
because you can't operate in a vacuum as you well know.
I found it interesting that, Madam Chair, you had made a proposal I guess on affordable
housing that got a lot of people talking. But only five or six people talked to you about it.
I know there are a lot more people out there that are interesting in these issues and we
gotta find a way to get, to get to these people, to talk to these people to find out how they
feel about the decisions that are being made and how they think that we should, the
directions we should go. I think one of my strongest attributes is that I know how to
communicate with people; I also know how to listen to people to ask them the questions
to get the answers from them. I also am a nut about research. I love research and I never
take anything at face value. I always go deeper than just the numbers and find out where
those numbers came from. I also think that it's important that people on committees have
a sense of consequence of their actions. Too often we make ... you know the people
will take the easy way out and not think about the consequences down the road of what
they're doing and how it's going to affect them and people five, ten, twenty years from
now. That's it.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Dale. Any questions for Dale? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening, Dale. You have a
great voice. I think you ought to get into radio, Dale.
MR. PARSONS: No future.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Seriously speaking, Dale, in your vision for Maui County over
the next twenty years, you mentioned that many mistakes have been made as it relates, I
presume, to Planning and other decisions made by past, I guess, government leaders
possibly. What ... can you elaborate to the Committee what you think those mistakes
were and what will you do as a GP AC member to correct the mistakes that were made?
MR. PARSONS: Well, people talk about the buzz word, smart growth. I think what's more
important is intelligent planning but even more important than that is intelligent
implementation. Too often we make the plans, everybody is thrilled with the plans, they
put into a book, they're published and they're put up on a shelf. And we don't look at
them as closely as we should as the months and the years go by. And somewhere along
the way somebody says, well, you know, the plan said this but we've done that. We'll
have to correct this the next time we go to the plan, the next time we try to revise the
plan. As far as specifics, I mean, look at the sprawl that is developed in places like Kihei.
That is a prime example. I think we need to look at things like in some areas looking at
the way things are zoned and how things are built. I know you're not advocating vertical
growth, but vertical growth doesn't necessarily mean tall buildings. Vertical growth
might mean taking a building, I think the closest thing we have to it right now is maybe
an M-l zoning where people live above areas where people work. Looking at something
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like that and I think you had even mentioned Upcountry at one point. I think those are
the things we need to look at. Those are the things that make sense to investigate and to
research it as time goes on.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Oh, anybody else have questions? I have one for you. When
you were running for public office earlier, you had stated that water was a major issue
and how do you see the role of water in the General Plan?
MR. PARSONS: Well, I live with the water issue on a daily basis with my wife Jennie, who is
on the Water Board. And I told you how much I love research. She's up until three or
four in the morning looking up these things and it's nonstop. Water, of course, is an issue
in the General Plan. It's going to be an issue in anything we do - the availability of
water. We need to, as we go through the General Plan, as we go through the process, we
need to take into account just what the water resources are. Again, we can't operate in a
vacuum. There are water problems out there and we need to address those water
problems as we're making the plan. We can't say that we're going to do something if
water isn't going to, uh, isn't going to be there so that we can do it.
CHAIR TAVARES: Uh-huh. Okay, thank you. Anything else? Thank you, Mr. Parsons.
Wallette Pellegrino.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Aloha. My name is Wallette Garcia Pellegrino. I was born and raised
right here in Wailuku. In fact, this area was my playground. I grew up on Wells Street
so we used to play hide and go seek when the land that this building is located on used to
be the old Maui Police Department. Charmaine, your dad probably remembered that. I
have lived in Waikapu now for 40 years. I am an educator by profession and definitely
by passion at Maui Community College. I am very interested in work force and
economic development because we know at MCC we are producing quality graduates
and I believe strongly that we need to give them a sense of hope because many of them as
they sit in my classes and other faculty classes and we talk about what is happening on
Maui seem to express and have a feeling of hopelessness and that's not right.
My preference, actually, is to work in small ways. I would prefer to be working with our
own Waikapu Community Association or doing awai cleanups in Waikapu and our
neighborhood and planting loi kalo as we do and serve on some small kind committees.
However, encouraged by my students and my neighbors and other faculty members and
colleagues to do something on maybe a little bigger scale I decided okay I'm going to put
forth my application to participate in GP AC, and I really appreciate the opportunity to
speak with you today regarding that.
I think I'm most interested in the human aspect of planning, how it affects the people,
right. We could talk about buildings and zoning and land use, et cetera but we really
need to think carefully about the people that it impacts. I believe that I can bring to this
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very dynamic process a sensible attitude, good old common sense should be prevailing,
right. I think I can also bring again my history. You know, I was standing outside during
the break and looking at the material in some of the display cases, and I was almost
chicken skin because I saw my uncle, Eugene Bal, when he was County Clerk his
signature there signing off on one of the documents that's on display. So, I believe
strongly that I have a place too in this process because of my long history here.
I also had a flash listening to Joe Bertram, he had some really awesome ideas about the
need to involve more people in the community in this process, and this idea came up to
me. You know I'm at the college, obviously, and wouldn't it be great if we were able to
set up a counterpart mini GP AC group made up of our students, right, and let them be
part of this process as well. Because remember, we're talking about them, it's their
future. I'm going to be 65 years old in a couple of weeks. So I feel strongly that I've
done a lot already, okay, in big and small ways. The time is now for the next generation.
Let's give them that chance. Mahalo.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. You're really something telling us how old you are.
MS. PELLEGRINO: I know. Aye, I forgot this was on Akaku. Now everybody is going to
know.
CHAIR TAVARES: Too late.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Oh, dam.
CHAIR TAVARES: Well, it's great because, you know, I know you look younger than I do and
I'm younger than you are. Any questions for the testifier? Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Wallette, thank you very much for coming and
volunteering after this long list of previous volunteer work and your current volunteer
work. It's very impressive and we thank you for giving so much to the community. This
is a big question and I don't expect a big answer but I'm going to take advantage of the
fact that you're here, and you work with our students, and you work on the job placement
office, and you brought this subject up yourself. Can you give us any idea of how you
would diversify Maui's economy so that we could give hope beyond menial service
entry-level jobs to our young people?
MS. PELLEGRINO: Uh-huh. That's the question we wrestle with all the time as a faculty and
especially with our Administration. And I have to say that the college has taken a real
close look at obviously what exists now and what the potential is for other things. For
example, just a couple of weeks ago we had a community forum to which we invited all
kinds of people, right, and both Mr. Pontanilla and Mr. Molina had a chance to join us for
that. And those are some of the things we're looking at. What is the direction that the
institution needs to go towards because one can talk about diversifying economy but
unless you have the educational institutions to back that up it's not going to make any
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difference. Because think about it - we brought the high-tech community to Maui
County. Wonderful, right. The MEDB, the High-Tech park in Kihei both are doing
awesome things. One of the issues, one of the challenges that they face was human
resources, the staffing. So it's one thing to say that we're going to diversify but it's also
another thing to say that we are going to be able to prepare our people here, right, to take
those kinds of jobs. Someone else that we heard that night at the community forum, at
our table any way, was the fact that in the visitor industry we have many people who are
graduates ofMCC, for example, who are well prepared for the entry-level positions in the
resorts, in the industry. But then there's a huge gap between those entry-level jobs and
the management-level jobs. Something is missing, right? There's a level of education
that's missing. So we talked about how we might approach it. Do we want our students
to continue their education in the hospitality industry? And what we learned from
listening again, listening to our community business partners, is that it isn't necessary for
them to be hospitality majors. But if they've got a good solid background in business
principles, they could parlay themselves from the entry level jobs into the management
level positions. So, you know, diversification can be in any number of ways but it can
also be in the industries that exist right now. Okay. I hope I responded.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you very much.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Mr. Molina. Wait, Ms. Garcia Pellegrino.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening, Mrs. Pellegrino. I
couldn't let you go without saying that I remember you as a counselor at Maui High and
you still look young after all these years as an educator. So ...
MS. PELLEGRINO: I've been around a long time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I think education must keep you young looking.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Thank you. Well, like I said, it's my passion, and it's really true. You
know, that's what gives you the energy, right, you love what you do.
COUNCLIMEMBER MOLINA: And on that topic, as part of your long-term vision for Maui
County, what role or potential do you see Maui County having as a center of education,
and where do you see it going and what would you do, as your role as a GP AC member,
to I guess work with government to help expand Maui County?
MS. PELLEGRINO: You know that's a question you should be asking Chancellor Clyde
Sakamoto because he has some awesome plans, I mean, really. If you talk with him, he
will be able to share that with you. I just want to be part of it. You know, like I said, I
prefer the behind the scenes the small stuff, right, because I think that's where I'm most
effective. I think if you're looking for visionaries, those are the people like the Clyde
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Sakamoto's of the world, et cetera, who will decide, you know, where this community is
going in terms of education.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So I take it you're the type too I guess involves as many
people in the process.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes. Absolutely, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. PELLEGRINO: Mahalo.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. I know I didn't remind everybody but if you could tum off
your cell phones, pagers. So, Jo Anne, you owe everybody in here a slice of pizza.
Okay. Nancy Lee Potter, are you here?
MS. POTTER: Aloha, Chair and Council Members. Thank you for inviting me to share a little
bit more about myself this evening. I am a neighbor of Wallette's in the same
neighborhood that Leslie spoke about Waikapu. I think it's interesting that people that
are familiar with that neighborhood are most interested in the way people feel about
where they live. Because to me Waikapu is the epitome of a local neighborhood where
people know one another, they know each other's kids, they watch out for the children,
they watch out for one another. Every Easter we have a community gathering and pot
luck at my next door neighbor's house. I grew up ... let's see ... I jotted down some
notes here. I think that we need development here. As much as I would like to see the
world freeze, I don't think that's going to happen just because I want it. And I think we
really need to look at how we're going to develop Maui. I, too, grew up on Oahu and
saw what can happen if you're not being conscience of the feelings of the people in their
neighborhoods. I've lived in neighborhoods as diverse as Waimanalo and Kahala,
Makawao and Kaanapali, Wailuku, Kula, Haiku. Came here as a kid to Oahu and then
came to Maui in '83.
I've worked, I bring a small business background, the background in the hospitality
industry, experience in health care as a RN and mediator's experience. I've sold designs
and building materials for houses so I think I bring a practical experience as well too on
what development is about.
I think that as I've listened tonight, one of the things that is most important, to me, is that
I think you guys get lots of interests or lots of pressure from special interests. From
people that have a financial interest in seeing how Maui develops. And I think it's
important to balance that with people like me and like many of the people that have
spoken to you tonight. And with our perspective of what makes Hawaii, Hawaii. And
what allows people to be proud of where they live. I think that it affects everything from
jobs to crime rate the way people feel about where they live. And lately, I'm not real
thrilled with the development that I've seen. It reminds me of Oakland and ghettos and
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that's not good for the psyche. I think that we need to be very cautious in how we go into
this plan, and I think we need to keep the priorities that are Hawaiian, that our culture has
thought us and I include myself as a hanai kid here.
There is a tremendous opportunity for this group to help Maui progress in a way that will
build upon our strengths both economically and environmentally. I think that when
Councilmember Kane was speaking about tall buildings vs. short buildings or maybe tall
hotels vs. hotels that have cabanas around them. There's room for diversity. That's what
Hawaii is all about, and there's room for moderation in all things here. I want
preservation in what makes us different. I want neighborhoods where people know each
other ... where women are still called aunty if they're over than 30 years old and are still
treated with respect by the children so the children behaves so they aren't smoking back
by the building and back of my house, yeah, because I'll tell ... and they need to know
that. I think that's one of the most essential values here is the caring of one another. I
don't worry so much about us getting hit by a hurricane as I do about places like Florida
or Texas because I know the people here will come together and they will work together
to survive and thrive. And that's what we need in our neighborhoods is that kind of a
feeling. So, okay, that's all my notes.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, thank you. Perfect timing. Any questions for Nancy?
MS. POTTER: Oh, come on.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Nancy.
MS. POTTER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: James Carter Riley.
MR. RILEY: Uh, excuse me. Good evening, Council Members, Council Chair. I want to thank
you for allowing me to appear and present testimony or speak about myself a little bit.
My name is Jim Riley. My wife is Jeannie Riley, who's been a teacher on Maui for 35
years. We have two children Brandon and Cavin, both of which were born on Maui. I
grew up on the East coast. I graduated from the University of Massachusetts with a
degree in Economics back in 1969. I left New England -- if you ever spent a winter there
it's not too hard to figure out why. I moved to California and I worked as a real estate
appraiser in the early '70s. I moved to Maui in 1972. I've been a real estate broker on
Maui for over 30 years. I was broker-in-charge for a company in Lahaina, Lowson &
Riley in the early '80s, and I'm currently the broker-in-charge for West Maui Land
Company. I spent most of my productive life as a home builder. I built houses from the
late '70s in to the mid '90s mostly in West Maui but also in Wailea, Upcountry, Wailuku
Heights. Recently since 1998, I've been a partner in some newly formed companies that
have purchased land from Pioneer Mill in the Olowalu and Launiupoko areas. I am
recently semi-retired..
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My reasons for wishing to serve on the General Plan Advisory Committee are kind of, I
think our voices need to be heard, and I guess it doesn't take too much to realize that I do
speak my mind. I do have strong opinions about a lot of things and I'm not afraid to
voice those opinions. I am a consensus builder. I do listen to people. I've been very,
very successful at everything I've done, and I work very, very hard in any endeavor that I
am allowed to participate in.
I truly feel ... I truly feel that if one does not believe in the system or the process that a
community is involved in, that one should try and change that system from within. I'm
not an advocate of urban growth boundaries; I'm not an advocate of over planning an
area. I think free enterprise is a much better system than government planning. I think a
lot of the problems that face the citizens of Maui County, cost of living, scarcity of
housing, junk cars on the road, appliances left on the road, lack of apartment houses, no
land available to build apartments, I think these problems have their roots in restrictive
zoning, overly restrictive zoning. And I think this has been a problem as long as I've
lived in Hawaii. And, again, I thank you very much for listening.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any questions? Michelle. Ms. Anderson. Jim, would you
please hold on?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Charmaine, I mean, Madam Chair. Thank
you, Jim, for coming and for offering your service. Yeah, you know, you were a very
strongly vocal opponent to urban growth boundaries. And as they were adopted by the
Planning Commission and the Council as part of the General Plan, how will you
reconcile if you're chosen to be on this Committee? How will you reconcile that because
I mean, the decisions have already been made.
MR. RILEY: Yes, the decision has been made to institute urban and rural growth boundaries,
but that does not mean that those boundaries have to be so restrictive. To restrict the
opportunities for citizens to have a meaningful chance to be successful in their endeavors
in Maui County I truly believe that the overly restrictive land use policies created a
tremendous burden on the young in their ability to not only to purchase a home but enter
into businesses that would provide them with a flourishing lifestyle and the ability to
succeed on Maui. So I do understand that we're going to have urban growth boundaries.
I just would like to see them a lot larger than most.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, as we've never really gotten down to developing a
map or anything, it's kind of hard to make that valuation right now as to how large they
will be and where they will be. I appreciate you offering your services. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Riley? Thank you. Next is
Carlos Rivera. Come forward please.
MR. RIVERA: Good evening, everyone. My name is Carlos Rivera. As a brief introduction to
myself, I'm originally from Honolulu, born and raised there. I went to school in Seattle
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University, Washington State. After graduating from Seattle with a Bachelor of Science
in Civil Engineering, I moved to Maui. I work for a civil engineering company here in
Wailuku for the past 12 years. And I believe that I could be a good asset to the GPAC
because of my background in civil engineering as well as my character. I feel that my
character is I have an open mind. I feel I'm reasonable. I feel that I can listen. And as
for my background as a civil engineer basically civil engineering, you know, basically
like problem solving. I can sit down, if there's a problem, I can sit down and, you know,
just try to figure it out. I also have a good sense of logic and I can apply a reason to that.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, thank you. Any questions for Mr. Rivera?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ijust have one question.
CHAIR TAVARES: Go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you be interested in employment with the County
of Maui?
MR. RNERA: I love my job now. Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you very much, Mr. Rivera.
MR. RNERA: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: HeillY Spencer.
MR. SPENCER: Good evening. My name is HeillY Spencer. I just like to say, before I talk
about my thoughts, I'm humbled by the diversity and the passion and the perspective of
the participants tonight. It's overwhelming. There's a lot of, it's a great diversity and
you guys have a very difficult task before you in how to choose 26 people.
Today, I'm going to speak in addition to previous testimony that I've made. I think one
of the things that we all have to keep in mind is that this is an advisory committee and
there's a lot more input, hopefully, going to be put into the General Plan from a lot of
different sources. And as other people have testified, I think that's very important that
it's not just the 26 people that are on this Committee that are actually deciding what the
General Plan is going to be.
The 1990 General Plan ... was very rich in objectives and I believe some of the policies
were difficult to implement. I think we've created an opportunity through Bill 84, the
process by which was a very lengthy one and I think every aspect of how to structure that
bill was exhausted, and in the end, I think Bill 84 is a wonderful document and that's, as
we head into the General Plan process, I believe that is kind of our guideline. Bill 84
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really sets the tone for what the General Plan is to be in terms of ... it speaks more of a
mandate. And that the General Plan that we come up with will have more of a force of
law and will be more effective.
Some of the things I'm concerned about are how the new General Plan is tied to
budgetary output. I think fiscal responsibility and fiduciary responsibility I think there
has to be a connection between the wish list that will come out of the General Plan and
how it's going to be implemented and how it's going to be funded. I think that ... and
that comes under the heading of the budgeting and capital improvements section of that.
One of the things that I'm passion about is growth, managed growth, appropriate growth
and we have some tools that we can create. We have some tools that we already have.
One of the things that I'm a very strong advocate of is having implementing in the
County of Maui an appropriate transfer of development rights program. I think it could
have, I've said this before, I stood up before you guys, I've stood up in front the Planning
Commission and I've said that transfer development rights could have saved us a lot of
pain and suffering over the past few years about how our land has been developed. And I
just hope that we provide for an opportunity in the General Plan to create a good transfer
of development rights program.
The other thing that I really believe we should come away with in the General Plan
amongst other things, I mean, there's so many issues. Anyone of us could stand up here
and speak for hours about water and transportation and growth and et cetera.
CHAIR TAVARES: You have one minute.
MR. SPENCER: Okay. I can do it in less than a minute, Charmaine.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thanks.
MR. SPENCER: The other thing that I'm really interested in seeing happen and come out of the
General Plan is . . . I think the new General Plan must provide for the opportunity to
make every community on the island self-sufficient, as self-sufficient as possible. The
less trips everybody has to COSTCO or wherever they seem to be the one that's taking
the beating tonight, but the more each community can have the services and the facilities
that they need for their immediate community to keep people from having to get in their
cars and drive across the island here, there, wherever, the better off everybody is going to
be. And it speaks to everybody's mental health, their financial help and beyond. So,
that's something that I'm going to be really pushing for is to create an opportunity to the
various communities on the island to become as self-sufficient as possible. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Spencer. Any questions for Mr. Spencer? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Oregon prior to moving to Maui, is that correct?
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MR. SPENCER: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You were a developer in Oregon.
MR. SPENCER: Did I have a piece of property there?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I'm asking were you a developer in Oregon? Did you
develop ...
MR. SPENCER: No, I did not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Were you involved in a project on the Willamette River?
MR. SPENCER: No, I was not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
development rights in Oregon?

You didn't have any expenence with transfer of

MR. SPENCER: No. The project that I worked on was in Washington on the Columbia River.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry. I've got the states
MR. SPENCER: That's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --mixed up.
CHAIR TAVARES: They're next door to each other.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. So, did you get involved in transfer of development
rights there?
MR. SPENCER: I was aware of them. And I trust you're asking about specifically about the
proj ect I was doing?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. SPENCER: Is that right?
COUNCILMEMBER SPENCER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If you want to talk about it.
MR. SPENCER: No, the project I was doing I ended up selling for the ... to a nonprofit.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You want to be more specific? There was no transfer of
development rights involved at all?
MR. SPENCER: No, there wasn't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions? Thank you very much. Warren Suzuki.
MR. SUZUKI: I guess we know the drill. Madam Chair, Members of the Committee, my name
is Warren Suzuki and from my perspective I struggled whether or not to put my name in
for consideration for GP AC. I think, after spending a lot of time just kind of thinking
about the Maui community how it's evolved to give you an idea, I lived here on Maui all
of my life. In fact, I grew up in Lower Paia. The other person talked about Lower Paia,
what is LowerlUpper Paia, the train track being the dividing line between Upper Paia and
Lower Paia. But my parents still live there in Paia. They live in the same house since
1941. They're 88 years old. We go there every weekend to visit with them because from
my perspective, you know, I firmly believe in the family core. That is what I go by
because that's how I was raised and that's how I raise my kids. But, you know, being
someone that has lived here on Maui and had the, I would consider the luxury and the
privilege of living in Paia, I've seen Paia change. Some good, some bad. Paia has
evolved where maybe it's gotten to the point where it's something that had to occur given
the direction the community took. But from my perspective, I think it's important for
those of us that have lived here on Maui maybe for as long as I have and in some cases
for some other people longer so we can give a historical perspective to individuals as they
start to try and plan for the future ofMaui. People came to Maui because they liked Maui
the way it was. But the same time, we need to understand how Maui evolved to the point
where they came here. When you look at, you know, people grew up in plantations, you
know, Kahului was in the eyes of the local community, they called it Dream City because
if it wasn't for Kahului there wouldn't be opportunities for individuals living in a
plantation camp to own their own home. And for a lot of us, my parents included. You
know, owning their own piece of property was a dream that they had, and you need to
understand the sacrifices that they made and put in, in order to be able to do it. My
parents paid $1,500 back in 1941 to purchase their house. You can imagine working for
a dollar a day. I mean, that's a lot of money but I think it's important to, as I said, to get
the perspective, the historical perspective of Maui, what made Maui and allow people to
understand as they go forward and try to plan, maybe try to gain and benefit from that
perspective. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES:
Anderson.

Okay, thank you, Mr. Suzuki.

Any questions for Mr. Suzuki? Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Warren, thank you for being here
tonight sitting through this. I understand, I see it by your application that you are a
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member of the Land Use Research Foundation.
positions of LURF?

Do you support the policies and

MR. SUZUKI: Yes, I am a member of the Land Use Research Foundation. There's some
policies and positions that I don't necessarily agree with. So just because I'm a member
doesn't mean that I support all of their policies and positions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's why I asked you. Thanks.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Suzuki, we know that you work for a big developer on the island.
How are you going to reconcile your role on the GP AC representing the community or
keeping the community's interest at hand when it might run contrary to what your
company's line might be?
MR. SUZUKl: I think, you know, from my perspective if an issue did come up that specifically
impacted or affected the company that I work for and it's no secret, it's Maui Land &
Pineapple Company, you know, my position would be to recuse myself and step back.
Because I don't think it would be appropriate for me to try to promote a particular issue
when it may impact my current employer. If a question is posed to me, you now, I could
potentially share what, you know, is asked of me but to promoting issues specific to the
company I work for would not be appropriate.
CHAIR TAVARES: Tharlk you. Any other questions? Mr .Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Suzuki, for your presence
this evening. I'm going to expand on the Chair's question, and again, just to help us
understand that frankly, from my perspective, I think you're going to be faced with some
challenges because of your position. Because you are or have been a Senior Vice
President within the company, and so by you stating that you're willing to step back and
recuse yourself, because of the size of the company and because of the land holdings that
they have, and because you folks are dealing with land decisions, do you see yourself as
perhaps compromising your ability to be an effective contributor to the committee since
you do have, you know, your ties to, from a professional perspective? And I'm not
questioning your personal perspective because quite frankly I think that is a tremendous
asset but I think the challenge lies in that professional part. Can you provide some
comment?
MR. SUZUKI: Thank you, Councilmember Kane. It's a difficult question to, you know,
respond to. But when you consider the position, and again, if an issue comes up that is
specific to the company that I work for, given the position that I'm in, as I stated to the
question, respond to the question that Councilmember Tavares asked, it's clear to me that
I would have to recuse myself. But at the same time, you know, granted Maui Land &
Pine does own a significant amount of land on the island of Maui but they don't
necessarily own all of the lands. So what I could bring to the table or what I could bring
to the GPAC would be, you know, maybe my perspective relative to seeing how Maui
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has evolved and sharing that information with the members of the GP AC, the fellow
members of the GPAC. And maybe that information can be used and could be beneficial
to the Members as they deliberate on an issue that's specific to Maui Land & Pine. You
know, granted, I would not be able to participate in that but, you know, hopefully, with
the information that could be provided to them, I guess historical information, they could
use that to assist them in reaching whatever decision they feel they need to make on an
issue that's specific to Maui Land & Pine.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And just one more question, Madam Chair, thank you and I'll
wrap it up. A step further now as far as the relationship because of your position and the
expectation or the understanding that you have with the company as far as your active
participation, in other words, did they give you your . . . give the blessings of the
company for you to participate understanding that you're going to have to be separating
yourself from the interest of the company in the best interest of what the Chair kind of
mentioned is for the greater good of the community, which may have some conflict there
at some point.
MR. SUZUKI: No question. I think that the company has been very encouraging of all
employees to participate in community groups, boards and commissions, you know,
whenever the chance is and they strongly encourage that. At the same time, they do
understand that given our individual positions with the company, it may, in some ways,
impact our ability to, to do all of that may be required. But they still encourage
participation with all ofthe employees to benefit our community.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Suzuki. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Suzuki.
MR. SUZUKI: Okay.
CHAIR TAVARES: Katherine Ann Taylor.
MS. TAYLOR: Buenas noches, Madam Chair Tavares. Ola, Council Members. Mellamo
Katalina Taylor. I'm Latina-Mexican-Arnerican born and raised in Houston, Texas.
That's about the extent of my Spanish I'm afraid to say so please don't ask me any
questions in Spanish. My husband and I were married in 1985 in Houston, Texas and we
decided two years later to move to Maui to raise our two beautiful daughters. Both were
born here on Maui. My oldest daughter attends University of San Francisco. She's a
graduate of Baldwin High School. My youngest daughter is a senior at St. Anthony and
soon I will be an empty nester. So I have been sitting here asking myself why I had
applied to the GP AC, and I think my question was I won't have anything to do. So, I
thought, well, what's better than to get involved with the community. I also asked myself
why did I want to get involved with the GPAC? And just recently in a move I found a
- 42-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 26, 2005

brochure that I got at the Maui Friends of the Library that says, "You and Your
Community", printed in 1965, which I was five years old at the time and it was for
women getting involved in their community. So, I am going to quote something that
struck me in this pamphlet and has also kind of led me to a vision that I see with GP AC.
"With a cross section of a community takes part in policy decisions, the shift from
planning for to planning with brings new insights to bear and broaden the scope of all
organizations and agency using volunteer services. The more points of you that are
represented, the more likely such action is to meet the varied needs of those involved and
to fit the special features of this situation. When each member has a voice in decision
making, she is more likely to be concerned with follow through. People who are actively
involved do not have to be pushed or convinced to support a given program on the
contrary being sold themselves their best able to convince others of its worth."
I have also asked some of the seniors at St. Anthony what their vision in 20 years for
Maui County, what they see the future. And unfortunately, they don't see it as a good
thing. They have seen a lot of growth and a lot of changes in Maui and that scares them.
And they would like to see something that could bring them back to Maui and that would
be more in the lines of affordable housing and of jobs, something that they could come
back to and stay here. There is a statistic that shows that most people that are ... adults
that live in a town or a city in which they are born, they no longer that's not where they
live. They move away from that town or city and that's not a very good fact, and I would
hate to see that happen to our County.
CHAIR TAVARES: The seniors you refer to were high school seniors?
MS. TAYLOR: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
MS. TAYLOR: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any questions for Ms. Taylor? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you, Katherine, for being here tonight
and volunteering. You say that you're in Payroll and Secretary for Richard Taylor. I'm
assuming that's your husband?
MS. TAYLOR: It is my husband.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What business is he in?
MS. TAYLOR: He is a ... he's in the construction business. He does finish work for homes
here on Maui. He does all the installing of doors and windows and all the finish work
that's in homes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it says payroll so he must have a large company.
MS. TAYLOR: Actually we did and now he has condensed. We had ten employees and now
we're down to two as unfortunately some ofthe jobs are corning to an end.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you should gear up because I hear that people are
looking for carpenters and construction people.
MS. TAYLOR: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Any other questions? Thank you very much for sharing with us.
MS. TAYLOR: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Alright. Trevor Tokishi.
MR. TOKISHI: I'd like to start off by saying that I am neither for nor against Roe vs. Wade.
I'm so unbelievably nervous you would think that it's a Supreme Court nomination. My
name is Trevor Tokishi and I am a certified public accountant and I am currently the
Executive Vice President of the Valley Isle Community Federal Credit Union.
Why do I want to serve on the GP AC? And it's a question that I've been asking myself a
lot over the past couple of weeks. And like a lot of people here, I, too, want to be
involved with the future of Maui and have a say for our children and our grandchildren.
What it truly boils down for me is that I am truly passionate about Maui. You know I
love Maui. You know I grew up here and my sons represent my families fifth generation
on Maui. So we have a special tie to Maui. And I think that our predecessors, you know,
your predecessors in County government and you folks now have done a tremendous job
in planning and developing and positioning Maui for the future and for today. And like
Councilman Molina mentioned, you know, Maui was named the best island in the world
by Conde Nast Traveler for the 12th straight year in a row. I mean, that's, that's
phenomenal. That's really incredible. And so why do I want to be a part of the GPAC?
I want to expose myself to more of the issues that's facing our community. I want to
learn more about this process that everyone else is so much more familiar with it than I
am. And in my own small way, I want to be a part of maybe helping Maui remain the
best island in the world for years to corne.
Why should you select me? Man you've got a room full of highly distinguished, very
qualified people, and I know that I'm not the smartest or not the most well-spoken or
definitely not the tallest. But I'm hoping that you would select me because of my own
unique perspective. From a professional standpoint, I work for a big CPA firm,
international firm called KPMG. I work as the Controller for Kapalua Bay Hotel and like
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I mentioned, I'm currently working for a financial institution here on Maui. I was also a
small business owner for couple of years here on Maui.
Personally, I'm a homeowner, a husband and like I said, the father of two young children.
So, I think I share a common viewpoint with a lot of young adults, you know, my age that
may not have a lot of representation. I think even moreover than that, I think that my job
is kind of unique because on a daily basis I get to interact with people from all walks of
life on Maui, you know, from the teenage early 20 years to the baby boomers to the
seniors. And so, I interact daily with them and I hear their concerns and their challenges.
I deal with the very wealthy down to the very much lesser means. So I think all this
along with my experiences can only help me if I am selected to serve on the GP AC or the
Supreme Court, whichever comes first. Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Anyquestions? Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
stepping up and take a deep breath, it's all over.

Trevor, thank you very much for

MR. TOKISHI: Not quite.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, you made a comment about Maui being the
best island. And it is the best island for those people who subscribe to Conde Nast
Travelers Magazine. It's the best island for people to visit who subscribe to that
magazine, they voted that moniker to Maui island. But I think what the General Plan is
going to attempt to do is going to attempt to make Maui the best island to live on. And
what would you do, in your perspective, in that you deal with people everyday who are
coming to you for loans for whatever reason to make their life better? What do you think
we could do in Maui County or in our General Plan in developing this plan to make Maui
a better place to live?
MR. TOKISHI: Okay, in my dealings at work, maybe not so much GP AC, but one of the things
I'm always striving to do or we're all striving to do to help Maui be a better place to live
is financial education. I think a lot of our, from the "Y" generations who are spending
their money buying rims and stereos and they come for a loan and then their credit is shot
to the seniors who are being taken by all these scams, sending their money to Nigeria to
the middle age people who are spending way too much on mortgages and fees like that.
There needs to be an educational process financially, which they don't get now. I know
that's not your question related to GPAC but talking about a better place to live that's one
of the things that I aim for.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. That's good. That's a good answer. Thank
you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you very much.
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MR. TOKISHI: Thank you.
CHAIR TAVARES: Glenn Edward Tremble. I don't know ifl'm embarrassing people by using
their middle name but I'm reading what's on the application.
MR. TREMBLE: Made me feel like what my mother used to call me when I was in trouble.
CHAIR TAVARES: Oh.
MR. TREMBLE: My name is Glenn Tremble. I've been on Maui for 10 years, although I've
been corning here to visit relatives since I was 14 in 1974 and made many trips thereafter
and then eventually fell in love with Maui. I think I feel in love in 1974 but I just didn't
know it yet. I have two children that are both born here on Maui. I did grow up just
outside of New York in a small town, uh, one square mile with 16,000 people in it.
Believe it or not, it was a small town that whenever I went anywhere in the town during
the day, my mother would find out and called me Glenn Edward Tremble, what were you
doing down there. So, I think what I like about Maui is that it's a big small town. And
over the last eight years, I've been in real estate on Maui. I've watched it go through the
roof. I work with, I'm a partner with West Maui Land. My job there is mainly
overseeing the field operations, the water systems. I, currently, oversee the three water
utilities that we manage over there. I'm the President of the Kai Holu Homeowners
Association in Spreckelsville. I worked and grew up in a family business prior to moving
here with my brothers and mother and father. I've always been in private business. I
have a degree from Rutgers in Economics with a finance concentration. And I love being
able to enjoy the freedom what Maui has to offer especially the water sports and the
natural beauty that Maui has.
What saddens me on Maui is watching some of the younger families not being able to
afford housing here on Maui leave the islands. My daughter goes to Doris Todd SchooL
She's in third grade. She started with 12 kids in the class. Right now I think only four of
the original 12 are there. The eight children that left there mainly left because of
economic reasons, not being able to afford a horne here. I've watched several of our
younger employees work with us that we valued a lot not being able to afford a horne
here and I think this GPAC, General Plan and Bill 84, hopefully, is going to allow us an
opportunity to perhaps expedite housing needs when they are in need as it is a crisis now.
This process, at least landowners, and the government will know where development is
going to happen and be able to meet the need much faster than it is currently the ... the
process. That's about it. Do you have any questions?
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, just some clarification first. You live in Spreckelsville?
MR. TREMBLE: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. And then it says here that you're the President of the Kai Holu
Association, that's a Spreckelsville Association?
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MR. TREMBLE: Yes.
CHAIR TAVARES: And it also says you're the Treasurer of the Olowalu Makai Homeowners
Association.
MR. TREMBLE: Yes. I'm a representative from the developer.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. So you don't have to live over there in order to be in there.
MR. TREMBLE: Oh, no.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions? Ifnot, thank you very much.
Okay, our last applicant from the Wailuku-Kahului area - Mercer Vicens.
MR. VICENS: Good evening, Chairman Tavares and Members of the Committee. I know we're
approaching a late hour so I'll try to be brief. I put my application in to be a member of
the GPAC Committee because for the last 11 or 12 years, I've been kind of a fringe
player in the CACs for Paia-Haiku, Upcountry, South Maui, Wailuku-Kahului. As you
know, as a former employee of A & B Properties, I'm retired and I do, do some
consultant work for them on specific projects. So I'll clear the air there.
I've said many times before you and Mr. Takushi [sic} just recently was up here and he
said, I don't why but I love Maui. I know why. When I drove around this island in 1988
as a member of Matson, I was befriended by someone I had never met before. And he
said, let me show you around. And that was the beginning of my love affair with Maui. I
have tried in my own way to give back to the community over the years, but I assure you
that this island has given me many, many more hours of pleasure that I will ever devote.
It doesn't matter whether we spend 30 months on this project or not. It will be a small
contribution, if I'm chosen, to give something back to this community.
I think this group of people that you have heard tonight spoke from their hearts - Renee,
Kent, they represent 40-50 years of being Mauians. I've only been here since 1988, and
yet, I am a native Hawaiian. But I don't know how they feel. I hope you understand
what I'm saying. I can only tell you about how I feel about this island, and I want to be
part of the process that takes my family, my grandchildren and my children into the
future. Because if we don't participate, then we don't know that we've given our best
shot at making Maui the best place possible. That's my only goal.
I understand that, you know, we've wrestled with Bill 84 for about three years. That was
a long seige. We're looking about 30 more months with Mike's process and then the
Council. But it's okay, it's okay because if we can make a difference, then we've
accomplished the goal. We will not win all the battles. It's about compromise, it's about
being able to understand somebody else's view point. And I think the Members that
spoke here tonight can all do that because there is no self-interest. There is nothing that
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says it's got to be done my way. But rather 26 or 28 people meeting to come to a
meeting of the minds as to where we're going and how we're going to get there. That's
all we're asking. And it's a very tough decision because you're faced with making four
choices probably and I don't envy you. But I would thank you for just considering the
members that have spoken to you tonight because I think their heart's in the right place.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Vicens. Any questions for Mr. Vicens? Ms. Anderson
followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Chubby, for volunteering your
service and for sticking it out here. You have attached to your application a resume of
personal history and in your experience you say from September '04 to the present you
are President of Vic ens Entitlement Group.
MR. VICENS: Thanks correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What is that?
MR. VICENS: I represent companies in trying to ... trying to get zoning and I've appeared
before you on A & B's behalf for Haliimaile, for instance. I work on specific projects,
maybe not necessarily only for Alexander & Baldwin but other developers in the
community.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that's what this company is for?
MR. VICENS: That's correct, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening, Mr. Vicens.
Staying on the resume that you provided the committee with, I see you've been a member
of an umpteenth number of organizations in your tenure here on Maui since 1988. Can
you just briefly share with us how many organizations you are currently a part of and do
you foresee a problem with making any GP AC meetings currently?
MR. VICENS: Let me answer it this way. I have never missed a meeting I wanted to be at in
my life. Okay. You asked what I do now. I am currently the Chair ofMEO recently
appointed to it. I am ... I've just stepped down and I am at the Maui Food Bank as
Chairman replaced after a four-year stint by our favorite banker, Steve Williams. I am
still a member of that Board. I have just recently resigned from the Ka Hale Ake Ola
after being with them for four or five years. What I'm trying to do, Mr. Molina, is to sort
out the areas of service that I can be to this community and be the most effective. For
instance, about eight or nine years ago I was the President of Big Brothers/Big Sisters, as
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many of you know, and we've taken them from the brink of disaster, brought them back,
they take care of many, many kids. I still sit in the background as an advisor to their
committee. So those are the kind of active groups that I'm working with at this particular
time, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you very much. Any other questions? Alright, seeing none.
Thank you, Mr. Vicens.
MR. VICENS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR T AV ARES: Members, we just have a little bit more to go if you would hang in there
with us. We have folks that were not able to come to the other district meetings and we'll
take them in kind of an order. Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, Mr. David Goode, to be
followed by Jan Fleetham from Paia-Haiku group.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Those are all the same.
CHAIR TAVARES: Uh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Same packet right?
CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah, they're . . . I think you have to look in the section for MakawaoKula-Pukalani. You have to go by the colored sheets. I'm sorry that they're not all
tabbed. Makawao-Pukalani is like the third colored sheet in. Not that the applicant is a
total stranger to us. All right, Mr. Goode. Thank you.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Good evening. Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Committee.
It's almost my bedtime but I'll try to make it short. I'm not sure why I signed up for the
General Plan Committee when I first saw it. I called Mr. Summers and said, tell me
about it. And the more he talked about it and the more I thought about it and the more I
said I've got to give it a go. And as I've listened to all of the testifiers tonight, I was
impressed by the diversity and the wealth of knowledge and the true commitments of
everyone, and I'd like to include myself in that group of being committed. And what I
heard, and I only heard it from one person I think it was Henry Spencer is the part that
I'm most impressed with, with the General Plan as it is now it's been amended 2.88B
[sic} is that the financial component and as it relates back to CIP, is going to be a strong
component of this plan. As a former administrator having been before this body in
developing budgets and getting budgets approved, it is absolutely essential that, that
component be in there and that it be understood and that it be reasonable.
The ordinance says that you ... this body, administrative action shall follow that budget
to the extent practicable. That means that the budgets, if you will, the goals that are set in
the General Plan better be practical or else that little loophole will be used over and over
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again and it won't be effective at all. So I think what I will be able to bring to this body
is that, that knowledge of that circle what happens after this plan is completed and future
administrations, future administrators, future Councils will have to grapple with and I'd
like to be able to be a strong voice to making sure that those reasonable projections are
made so capital improvements can be set forth and accomplished so that 10 or 15 years
from now when we're picking the next group we don't say, gee, we should have done it
this and we should have done it that way.
I'm interested in the carrying capacity studies that are being made and the assumptions
that are put in those carrying capacities and how that will define urban growth
boundaries. I mentioned and I believe strongly of property owner's rights as reasonably
regulated by the government. I believe in government's responsibility to be timely on all
matters. I'd like to strengthen that particular aspect, if possible, in the General Plan. And
I believe in upholding the unique beauty of this island and I'm looking at the beauty from
the external and from the internal beauty of all of Maui. And I think that's well thought
out in our current general plan. I know it will be part of the new General Plan. That
surely will make us unique. And I would say that the biggest problem that I'm seeing in
general is a creeping mainlandization of values, culture, crime, and personalization. A
gentleman spoke about from Oahu being able to make contact with ice and that's
something I'm starting to see go away and that's something I want to make sure stays.
And that's it.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Goode. Any questions for Mr. Goode? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, David, for coming
tonight and volunteering. On your resume you have that you are currently Vice-President
of Operations, oversee development projects from conception to completion. Could you
tell us who you work for?
MR. GOODE: Yes. I work for Smith Development. We're not landowners, large landowners.
We buy property that has entitlement rights of one sort or another may missing one or
two, and then we develop it in accordance with County laws, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
correct?

You guys are currently doing the wind farm,

IS

that

MR. GOODE: Yeah. We're a minority partner in the wind farm. It's an exciting project. We
have become immersed in and well versed in all that it takes to put alternative energy
sources on line here on Maui, and that's dealing with the utility companies, the PUC, the
State. It's a fascinating process and it's going to become a reality..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, David. Anything else for Mr. Goode? If not,
thank you, David.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
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CHAIR TAVARES: The next three ... did Janet disappear? Oh, she's hiding behind the
column is in the second section of your book, the second colored sheet. So, the next three
folks are from the Paia-Haiku area. And this is Janet Fleetham.
MS. FLEETHAM: Good evening, everybody. My name is Jan Fleetham. I'm an artist and a
writer and a resident of Haiku. This is my ninth year of living on Maui. I'm not a
developer. I'm not employed by A&B or Maui Pine. Don't really have any vested
interest other than just as a resident. I'm one of the people that's in the traffic going
towards Paia in the afternoons. I have three kids, two of whom graduated from King
Kekaulike High School. My youngest son is still going to school there. I was born in
California. I grew up in the Bay area and during my lifetime the Silicon Valley has
changed tremendously. When I was a kid there were orchards and horse ranches where
now there are concrete freeways and all sorts of buildings and things. I see Maui heading
in that direction and I really ... I think it's important that people that live here have a
chance to say what they think. So that's why I'm here.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Ms. Fleetham. Anyone have a question for Jan? I want to
thank you for rushing back-MS. FLEETHAM: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR TAVARES: --to the building. I know you had to take care of some personal things and
she came on back. So I appreciate you stepping forward and making a sacrifice. Thank
you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chair. And thank you, Jan, for
coming and volunteering for this with three kids. And being self-employed as an artist
I'm sure is a sacrifice to do this, and I'm especially appreciative because I think you're
the first artist that we've had in this whole go around.
MS. FLEETHAM: You need artists.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know. I mean, this is a different perspective.
MS. FLEETHAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I thank you very much for coming forward. I'm trying
to think of an artistic question for you. As an artist and as you paint Maui and as you
deal with people who buy your paintings, what kind of comments or what thought comes
to mind on how we can ... what we need to do to preserve the beauty of Maui?
MS. FLEETHAM: Most people that I speak with, a lot of people who buy my paintings don't
live here. They come on vacation. And what they want to bring home with them and
what they want to see is what they see when they go to the beach or when they go to the
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mountains. When you go to a lot of the newer subdivisions it kind of look like San
Diego, you know, or look like anywhere along Silicon Valley - the architecturing, and
they want to see Hawaii. They want to see Hawaiiana and just the peacefulness that's
here, the beauty.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Jan.
CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you. Any other questions? If not, thank you very much. Lance
Holter.
MR. HOLTER: Good evening, Council. And as I watch the Council work and I see how long
you work and the hours that you work and how much you travel, how far you're awake
and how often you're away from your families, I sometimes when I pick my daughter up
at school I pinch myself that how lucky I am that Mike won. So, my name is Lance
Holter. I've spent half of my life on Maui. I raised and educated three daughters here.
I'm educating a nine-year old and raising her. She's Hawaiian, she's Chinese. Prior to
coming to Maui, I lived in New Zealand. I was a farmer in New Zealand. I was in the
Peace Corps in North Africa. I attended Forestry College; graduated from Forestry
College. I was going to become a Wildlife Biologist when I realized I couldn't raise a
family on $3.50 an hour. So, I'm here on Maui now and I'm vested because of my
children here and because of this legacy that I want my children to have, I'm vested, and
I'm involved in my community and I love my community. I live in a little dirt road in
Paia. My next door neighbor is Warren Suzuki's parents. My immediate neighbor is
Filipino. The neighbor down the way is Puerto Rican. I know the culture and the
nuances of my island very well. I know that the Filipino people that live down my street
never came to my house in their entire lives that they lived on my street because it was a
Japanese Buddhist temple. And when I moved down the street, the first thing I did as I
invited all the neighbors and all the neighbors' kids for an Easter egg hunt. And this was
the very first time that they had actually walked on my property which was an old
Buddhist temple. They all thought that all of these little shrines were grave stones. I
said, no, these are shrines. These had Buddhism in these shrines. So, anyway, we had
Easter eggs all over the little area of the Buddhist temple that I live in, that I own. And
we've been doing this for 10 years now. We have Easter egg hunts where all the kids in
my neighborhood come.
So why am I talking about this? It's because Maui is a big community of people that
know everybody, know each other, and on my street we look after each other. And my
town we look after each other. And when I talk ... when I think about why would I want
to be on the GPAC, it's because when my older daughter came back from the University
and she got a job as a ... first as a student teacher at Haiku School, she worked for three
months and didn't get paid because the arrangement in the State's system was where that
she wasn't paid so she lived with me for three months. And I thought - how can a young
person have a chance here if they go to college, come back, do well in college, have a
degree but they can't get ajob where they can own a home or they have to live with their
father and I chase away all their boyfriends? So I think the GP AC we can have an effect,
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we can create a future for our children. And I'm not talking just our immediate children,
I'm talking about generations and generations of children, just as you who have grown up
here all your lives and come from your fathers and your fore fathers. I think Mike is five
generations Hawaiian. I know Riki is generations. And I think that we have a connection
that once we are stakeholders, once we are vested in our home, we all want to make it a
better place. So, I'm coming to this point where I want to talk about the General Plan.
This was a unique plan that was developed. And I remember over the years of watching
this being developed and debated and so forth that there is this long discussion during the
90s that it was a guideline and then GATRI vs. Blane came about and we realized that the
General Plan is actually law because of this. And had we treated the General Plan as law,
for example, we had a solution in the General Plan, Page 8 on "Housing", and it says,
"Objective 1, to provide a choice of attractive, sanitary, and affordable homes for all of
our residents." It goes on to "Polices
provide or require adequate physical
infrastructure to meet the demands of present and planned future affordable housing
needs." It was all here in the community plan. And had we followed the community
plan, had we had concurrency of infrastructure with our planned growth, a lot of these
problems that we're facing right now we would have solutions for.
CHAIR TAVARES: Could you wrap up, please?
MR. HOLTER: So, you have plenty of candidates for the GPAC and your decision making
would be very difficult. And I honor you for coming here and working with us and
working with the community. Thank you very much.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay. Any questions for Mr. Holter? If not, thank you very much. Thank
you for hanging in there with us. Michael Westfall. He gave up on us.
Okay, Members, this concludes this part of it. Is there anyone in the audience who
wishes to offer testimony? Okay, seeing nobody charging forward, we will take
announcements from the Members. Hearing none or seeing none, be mindful that we will
be taking up the action of the Committee on October 31 st at our regularly scheduled 1:30
p.m. meeting, and we hope to see you there. We know we have our work cut out for us
'cause every meeting we come to it just gets better and better. You know, it's amazing
and I really, really appreciate all the folks who have taken the time to fill out an
application, to be interested, and to come and share themselves with us and I see we have
some people in the audience that were from the other districts that have come to listen to
who might be there colleagues on the GP AC perhaps. But thank you very much for
attending and stay with us as we go through the process. We will be taking testimony at
the 31 st meeting, so if there's still, Members, applicants who have not had a chance to
testify they can come up and do their three minutes introduction of themselves. Okay.
So, Members, thank you so much for hanging in there with us. It's been a hard week and
I really appreciate you staying here. Ifnot, this meeting is adjourned .. . (gavel). ..

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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CHARMAINE TAVARES, Chair
Planning Committee
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